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Pak-Gulf Leasing
Company Limited

Mission Statement

The Company will:

* Aim to gain the confidence of all its stakeholders by earning a
credible reputation for being an innovative enterprise that is
prepared to change in the best interests of its stakeholders.

e Continually monitor structural changes in the various sectors of
the economy, and accordingly alter the Company’s business
strategy to benefit from the emerging opportunities.

e Focus on changing customer needs and strive to improve tangible
and intangible returns to its customers by providing service and
satisfaction at par with the best in the industry, which would be
reflected in prompt risk evaluation and facility disbursement
procedures and practices.

* Consciously share and remain part of all initiatives by the leasing
industry to play a positive role in the evolution of small and
medium-size enterprises to expand the country’s industrial base
and support economic growth, higher employment, and a better
future for all.



Pak-Gulf Leasing NOTICE OF
Company Limited ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 26thAnnuaI General Meeting of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited
will be held at the Company's Registered Office namely, UNIBRO House, Ground and Mezzanine
Floor, Plot No. 114, 9th East Street, Phase-I DHA, Karachi-75500, on Wednesday, October 23, 2019
at 4:00 p.m.to transact the following business:

A.

1.

B.

5.

Ordinary Business:

To read and confirm the minutes of the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on April 22,
2019;

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the
year ended June 30, 2019 together with Directors’ and Auditors' Report thereon;

To approve the payment of Cash Dividend to the Shareholders of the Company at the rate
of Rs. 0.75 per share of Rs. 10 each for the year ended June 30, 2019; and

To appoint Auditors for the year 2019-20 and fix their remuneration.

Any Other Business

To transact any other business with the permission of the Chair.

By Order of the Board

Mehreen Usama
Company Secretary

Karachi: October 01, 2019

Notes:

1.

@

(ii)

The Register of Members of the Company shall remain closed from October 17, 2019 to October
23, 2019 (both days inclusive).

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting of Members is entitled to
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf.

The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority under which it is
signed or a notarially certified copy of the power of attorney must be deposited at the registered
office of the Company at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting. A form of proxy is enclosed.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines as laid down by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

For attending the meeting:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose
securities are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the regulations,
shall authenticate his/her identity by showing his/her original CNIC or original passport at the
time of attending the meeting.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominees shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of
the Meeting.



(ii)

(iii)

(iv)
v)

Pak-Gulf Leasing NOTICE OF
Company Limited ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For appointing proxies:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities
are in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall
submit the proxy form accordingly.

The proxy form shall be withessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.
In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen

signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.

CNIC /NTN

5.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its notification SRO 831(1)/2012
dated 5 July 2012 require that the dividend warrant(s) should bear CNIC number of the registered
member or the authorised person, except in case of minor(s) and corporate members. Accordingly,
members who have not yet submitted copy of their valid CNIC or NTN in case of corporate entities
are requested to submit the same to the Company’s Share Registrar. In case of non-compliance,
the Company may withhold dispatch of dividend warrants under intimation to regulator till such
time they provide the valid copy of their CNIC as per law.

E-Mandate

6.

After the promulgation of the Companies Act, 2017 the listed companies are obliged to pay cash
dividend through electronic mode only by directly crediting the dividend amount in the designated
bank accounts of the entitled shareholders. Accordingly the shareholders who hold shares in
physical form are requested to submit the e-dividend mandate to the Company’s registered office
while the shareholders who hold shares in Central Depository Company are requested to submit
the e-dividend mandate to the participants/investor account services of the Central Depository
Company Limited. In case of non-compliance, the Company in line with the directions given by
the regulator will not be able to make payment of dividend.

Filer and Non-Filer Status

7.

Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2019 effective 1 July 2019, deduction of income tax
from dividend payments shall be made on the basis of filers and non-filers as follows:

. For filers of income tax returns 15%
. For non-filers of income tax returns 30%

Income Tax will be deducted on the basis of Active Tax Payers List posted on the Federal Board
of Revenue website. Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible
for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary
documentary evidence, as the case may be.

The shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by Filers and Non-Filers shall be dealt with
separately and in such particular situation, each account holder is to be treated as either a Filer
or a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted according to his shareholding. If the share is not
ascertainable then each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and
the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid deduction of tax at a higher
rate, the joint account holders are requested to provide the details of their shareholding to the
Share Registrar of the Company latest by the AGM date.

Shareholders are requested to notify change of their addresses, if any immediately.



Pak-Gulf Leasing CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW REPORT
Company Limited TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

It is my pleasure to present a concise review of the general performance of the Board of the Company
and efficacy of the role played by it in accomplishing the Company's objectives for the financial year
ended June 30, 2019.

The Company has put into place a robust framework of internal controls and governance with a view
to effectively and prudently supporting the over all business management of the Company, which is
essential for successfully and comprehensively attaining the goals and objectives of the Company
in line with its vision.

Your Company firmly believes in following the best business practices and resolutely adheres to
performing under the prescribed regulatory framework and all applicable rules and regulations. The
Board fully understands its responsibility towards the Corporate & Financial Reporting Framework.
Consequently, each Member of the Board strives to ensure his/her attendance at all the meetings of
the Board and to actively and meaningfully participate, in the proceedings thereof, with respect to
various policy issues and decisions. The Board closely evaluates, monitors and approves the financing
transactions undertaken by the Company. The Board also exercises intensive and regular vigilance
over effective compliance by the Company with the internal policies developed in accordance with
regulatory requirements.

An assessment of the performance of the Board, with regard to its responsibilities, is annually
undertaken to determine its effectiveness. This evaluation mainly relates to the Board’s contribution
towards achieving objectives as set out in the Company’s Vision; Mission; Business Strategy;
Development of Management and Professional Skills and the knowledge base of the Human Resource;
Contemporary Trends in Business Management & Corporate Governance; the prevailing Economic
& Interest Rates scenario; Financial Overview; Risk Management; Protection of Shareholders’ Rights,
particularly those of the Minority Shareholders; Operational Requirements under the FATF & Prudential
Guidelines of the SECP; Transparency; Formation & Performance Evaluation of the various Committees
of the Board; Product Development; Business Diversification Options; and Comparison of the Company’s
positionvis-a-vis other Competitors.

On the basis of the Board's performance evaluation, the Directors are of the opinion that the Board
has been productively involved and immensely useful in successfully handling all the aforesaid
responsibilities, including implementation of effective controls, risk management procedures and
compliance with all the regulatory reporting requirements.

Chairman

September 26, 2019
Karachi
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Pak-Gulf Leasing DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Company Limited TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

Dear Shareholders,

Your directors are pleased to present the 26" Annual Report of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited
(PGL), including Financial Statements and the Auditors’ Report, for the year ended June 30, 2019.

OPERATIONAL OVERVIEW

Keeping in view the restrictive operational environment, under which your Company was required to
perform, the growth in PGL's business during the financial year under review could be taken as fairly
impressive.

Your Company maintained, during the year, its time-tested policy of writing repeat leases for some
of PGL’s most consistently performing and well established Customers. At the same time, efforts were
successfully made for marketing fresh client relationships with credit worthy businesses and entrepreneurs
of good market standing. It has, of late, become a cornerstone of the Company’s Credit Policy to
derive comfort by securing itself against high exposure by obtaining collateral securities, wherever
considered necessary for mitigating risk, in addition to Leased Assets. As opposed to other leasing
companies, which usually rely on leased assets to cover their default risk, your Company, as a
consequence of adopting this unique policy, has to a great extent covered itself against volatile
economic conditions leading to delinquencies and defaults relating to leasing exposure.

All new business relationships were undertaken by PGL, after taking into account the related financials
of the prospective lessees, their respective market reputation and business track record, in addition
to applying other standard risk evaluation techniques for arriving at the viability, both in terms of risk
and reward, of the financing proposition offered to the Company. All credit approvals, as a matter of
Policy and the established Standard Operating Procedure of the Company, are subject to an independent
survey and valuation of the assets to be leased, and/or provided by a lessee as a collateral security,
to secure the Company against the relative credit exposure.

PGL'’s fund management policy heavily rests on the need for re-deployment of funds realized by way
of prompt receipt of Lease Rentals from existing lessees into fresh exposures for other clients, thereby
using to the maximum our internally generated financial resource for funding the Company’s ongoing
business. It should, therefore, be a matter of pride for the Company that, for the past couple of years,
it has been reporting an extraordinarily high Recovery Rate. For the year under review this Rate was
95%.

Notwithstanding the Company'’s reliance on internally generated funds for financing its business
requirements, the exceptional growth in your Company’s business, during FY-2018-19, totally outpaced
the recovery cycle, requiring the Company to draw on Short-term Borrowings from Commercial Banks,
besides fresh investment in the Company’s Cols Scheme by the Sponsors of your Company. The
Sponsors’ unstinted and continuing support to the Company, throughout the years since its inception
in 1994, must be lauded and recognized. Their assistance to the Company, whenever it is needed,
also reaffirms their confidence and trust in the satisfactory manner in which your Company has
performed over the years.

ANALYSIS OF PGL's OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE IN FY-2018-19
Leases Written and Disbursed

104 new leases of Rs. 1,025.51 million were written, during FY-2018-19, as compared to 132 leases
and 2 Diminishing Musharaka contracts of Rs.1,040.15 million written in the FY-2017-18. While the
total lease disbursement amount during FY-2018-19 was Rs.778.86 million. The growth in Leases
written and the amount disbursed by your Company, over the past 6 years, is illustrated in the following

Chart:
7
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Categories of Investment in Lease

Your Company’s core business activity is assets-based financing, as permissible under the various modes
prescribed by SECP. With the ultimate recourse for recovery of the Company’s exposure being the assets
it finances, it is essential that the quality of such assets is well evaluated and an intelligent Assets
Diversification Policy is adopted, keeping in mind the prevailing economic and business conditions affecting
the Forced Sale Values of the cumulative Assets Portfolio over the average life of a financing transaction,
in addition to assessing the marketability of the relative assets in the event of any foreclosures. Collateral
securities offered by the Customers are also gauged on the same standards. While doing so, PGL needs
also to attend to the Tax Benefits accruing from financing a particular category of assets. The Chart below
pictures the breakdown of PGL's Assets-wise Investment in Leasing, during FY-2018-19:

Main Categories of Investment in L ease

I Machinery & Equipment 72%
M Vehicle 20%

Others 8%
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Sector-wise Composition of the Lease Portfolio

Notwithstanding the consideration of the present and the anticipated value of the Assets Portfolio, a prudent
Risk Management Policy further demands that the Sector-wise Distribution of the Company’s financing
transactions is also well-diversified in the light of the contemporary business environment prevailing in
the Country. Certain sectors of the economy such as, Healthcare; Food & Beverages; Education;
Transportation; Housing (Construction); Energy and Entertainment, in a developing country such as
Pakistan, affect the lives of the general public as a whole and may be considered as relatively securer
to take a financial exposure on. A Chart illustrating, in graphical details, the manner in which the Sector-
wise composition of PGL's Lease Portfolio stood in FY 2018-19, is as under:

Sector-wise L ease portfolio as on 30 June 2019

Energy, oil and gas 21%
Others 18%
Media & Entertainment 9%
Health care 9%
Beverage 7%
Steel, Engineering and Auto 7%
Contruction 6%
Textile 5%
B Transport and Communication 4%
B Services 4%
m Pharmaceuticals 3%
Hotels 3%
® Advertisement 2%
# Education 1%
Electrical goods 1%

Financial Achievements

The Balance Sheet footings, which stood at Rs. 2,548.82 million as on June 30, 2018 has further
increased to Rs. 2,661.79 million as at June 30, 2019. This year-on-year increase of 4.43%, in the total
assets of your Company, signifies a satisfactory improvement, when compared with the performance of
the few remaining profitable leasing companies, presently operating in Pakistan. The Balance Sheet growth
of PGL is illustrated in the following Chart:

Balance Sheet Growth (Rs. in Million)
3000
2,549 2,661
2500 2151
2000 1.851
1,500

1500 1200
1000
500

0

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Gross Investment in Leases stood at Rs. 2,707.69 million as on June 30, 2019 (FY-2017-18: Rs. 2,535.62
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 6.78% (FY-2017-18: 22.97%). Net Investment in Leases,
after deduction of Unearned Income (Rs. 339.64 million), Mark-up held in Suspense (Rs. 2.12 million) and
a Provision for Potential Lease Losses (Rs. 2.628 million), amounted to Rs. 2,363.3 million at the end of
FY-2018-19, showing an increase of 5.1% over the previous year’s corresponding figure of Rs 2,248.6
million as at June 30, 2018. The growth in Net Investment in Leases of the Company, over the past six
(6) years, is shown in the Chart below:
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Profitability Performance

After-tax Profit which, for the Financial Year 2018-19 has been recorded at Rs. 64.38 million, as
compared to Rs. 69.37 million during FY-2017-18, showing a modest, but consistent increase.

EPS for FY-2018-19, due to inflationary increases in the expenditure outlay and a higher reliance on
interest-based borrowings from commercial banks during the year, has slightly come down to Rs.
2.54, as compared to Rs. 2.73 for FY-2017-18.

Gross Revenue for the period under review (FY-2018-19), is 21.71% higher at Rs. 243.89 million,
as compared to Rs. 200.38 million, for the corresponding period in FY-2017-18.

Leases Written during FY 2018-19 stood at Rs. 1,025 million, as compared to leases written in FY-
2017-18 for Rs. 1,040.15 million.

Lease Amount Disbursed during FY-2018-19 was Rs. 778.86 million was a shade higher than the
corresponding amount of Rs. 767.19 million during FY-2017-18.

Equity of your Company, as per NBFC Regulations, as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs. 664.81
million, which is Rs. 164.81 million in excess of the Minimum Equity Requirement of Rs. 500 million.

10
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Comparative Analysis of Profitability Performance 2019 | 2018 Change
For the year ended 30th June %
(Rupees in Million) +or (-)
Income 243.89 | 200.38 | 21.71%
Administrative Expenses 78.83 | 72.58 8.61%
Financial Charges 78.01| 47.68| 63.61%
Profit before Taxation 71.18 | 80.60 | -11.69%
Provision for Taxation (including Deferred Tax) 6.81| 11.23 | -39.45%
Profit after Taxation 64.38 | 69.37 -7.21%
Un-appropriated Profit Brought Forward 282.58 | 246.11 | 14.82%
Transferred from Surplus on Revaluation to Un-appropriated Profit - - 0
Profit Available for Appropriation 346.95 | 315.48 9.96%
Appropriations
Transfer to Statutory Reserve 12.87 | 13.87 -7.21%
Dividend 31.71 | 19.03| 66.63%
Total Appropriations 4458 | 3290 | 35.50%
Un-appropriated Profit Carried Forward 302.37 | 282.58 7.00%
Earnings Per Share (In Rupees) 2.54 2.73 -6.96%

Dividend / Post Balance Sheet Date Event

Your Directors are pleased to recommend a Cash Dividend of 7.5% to be declared for the Financial
Year ended June 30, 2019. The financial statements do not reflect this proposed dividend.

ECONOMIC SCENARIO
Following the General Elections of 2018, Pakistan’s Economy has been going through a rehabilitation

phase. The GDP Growth was recorded at 3.3% in FY 19, as compared to 5.8% in financial year ended
June 2018 (FY-18). The reduced GDP Growth is on account of decline in:

. Large Scale Manufacturing Sector’s growth by 2.1% as compared to 5.1% growth
recorded in the same period last year;

. Low Khareef Crop production;

. Restricted capital investments owing to cut in Public Sector Development Program
(PSDP); and

. Rising energy and financing costs.

These factors resulted in slower growth in the commodity producing sector, as well.

Pakistan's Current Account Deficit has decreased to USD 13.4 billion as of FY 19, as compared to USD
19.9 billion last year, which helped ease pressures on SBP's Foreign Exchange Reserves. This reduction
in the external balance was mainly driven by a 29.5% decline in the Trade Deficit, due mainly to increased
inflows from Services and Foreign Remittances.

The country's Exports were recorded at USD 29.5 billion while Imports were recorded at USD 61.9 billion
during FY 19.

SBP's Foreign Exchange Reserves have risen to about USD 8 billion during July 2019, following
disbursement of the first tranche of the IMF's Extended Funding Facility. Reserves are expected to rise
further in FY 20 on account of additional financial inflows from other international creditors, including those
related to the Saudi oil facility, leading to continued improvement in Current Account Deficit.

The average CPI Inflation reached 7.3% in FY 19, compared to 3.9% recorded in FY18. These pressures
on inflation are explained by:

11
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Higher government borrowings from SBP;

Adjustments in the administered prices of electricity, gas and fuel;
Significant increase in perishable food prices; and

The continued unfolding impact of Exchange Rate depreciation.

In order to curb the rising inflation, the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), in its latest Monetary Policy Statement,
announced in July 2019, has raised the Policy Rate by 100 bps to 13.25% and the Discount Rate to
13.75%. Discount Rate has been raised by 325 bps since the start of FY 2019, and it now stands at its
highest level since 2012.

The external sector developments had an impact on inflation. The pass through of rising global oil prices
to domestic fuel prices pushed up the energy component of inflation, as the government passed on its
impact to consumers. Similarly, the impact of PKR depreciation started to translate into costly imports and
shoring up of inflationary expectations. In short, ensuring the continuity of expansion in economic activities
and low inflation would depend on containing of current account and fiscal deficits. As these vulnerabilities
are posing challenges to Pakistan’s current growth cycle, implementation of both short-term and medium
term policies would be crucial in this regard. In the short-term, concerted efforts could be made to rationalize
fiscal expenditures given the tax relief measures approved in budget FY19. In the medium term, reforms
would be needed to expand the tax base, besides enhancing efficiency of the existing system. Simultaneously,
there is a need to arrange external financing in the short term. Also, more policy measures are required
to contain the widening trade deficit. For this purpose, it is also crucial to resolve structural issues affecting
exports competiveness.

Leasing Companies which had once fueled the demands of the consumer and the industrial sectors, as
members of the quasi-banking sector in the form of NBFIs, have in recent years been left high and dry,
with respect to liquidity, due to the rising capital adequacy requirements, enforced by the regulators. The
unwillingness of commercial banks to lend a helping hand by providing credit at acceptable terms and
the escalating cost of doing business have hit hard the lease finance servicing capability of the lessees,
rendering the very viability of the leasing companies as doubtful. A good majority of the smaller leasing
companies have either opted for mergers with stronger financial institutions, or have taken the path of
closing down their doors to customers by choosing voluntary liquidation. Currently, there are only a few
leasing companies operating in Pakistan which are also finding it hard to survive due to stiff competition
from the banks and tax disadvantages in the form of imposition of Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) on
accounting income by the Federal Government and sales tax chargeable at the rate higher than average
IRR.

PGL would need to closely watch and constantly monitor the emerging position of the economy, for your
Company to withstand the pressures caused by the prevailing situation taking a much adverse turn.
Caution has been the hall mark of PGL, throughout its operations, over the years. The Company might
need to exercise this attribute to the maximum extent in the times to come.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Assets-backed financing, particularly Leasing, relies heavily on the ability of the borrowers’/lessees’ cash
flow generation capacity to ensure prompt and punctual servicing of their respective liabilities. None of
the financial institutions is in the business, either of initiating foreclosures, or managing the businesses
of its defaulting borrowers.

A sound economic environment is a must for any business to prosper and progress. The Company has
a cautiously optimistic outlook with respect to the coming year, based on the positive trends on the
economic front and increased political stability. All businesses must have the ability to enjoy adequate
profit margins, leaving them with enough room, in terms of liquidity needed to promptly and punctually
honor their repayment commitments, towards their lenders or financiers. For the present at least, the
capacity of businesses to service their debts is impaired by diminishing profit margins, resulting from an
escalating cost of inputs and direct or indirect taxation.

Lack of support from commercial banks in advancing credit to the Private Sector is further eroding the
propensity of businesses for undertaking much needed initiatives for improving their efficiency and output.
This scenario is leading more and more entrepreneurs to seek financial support through leasing transactions,
which are relatively expensive to afford, but do carry the advantage of some tax benefits for the lessees.
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Leasing companies are now faced with the situation of an increase, in terms both of the number of
prospective lessees, as well as the quantum of their financial demands. At the same time, these companies
are finding the commercial banks increasingly shy in supporting them with the required amount of liquidity
for funding the quantitative rise in demand for leasing finance.

Moreover, using the increasing rate of return on their substantial investment in Government Securities,
as the benchmark, the Spread being demanded by commercial banks for lending to leasing companies,
has always been on a much higher side. To make the matters worse, the lending banks are also looking
for collateral securities, before undertaking any credit commitment for the Leasing Sector. Leasing
companies are, therefore, faced with the dilemma of having to raise funds on tougher terms and at higher
interest rates for financing the requirements of their lessees at rates, which might make it difficult for such
lessees to afford.

To further compound the problems for the Leasing Companies, commercial banks (particularly, Islamic
Banks or Islamic Banking Divisions of commercial banks) have become exceedingly active in offering the
Islamic equivalent mode of leasing namely, ljarah to the public. With their low cost of funds, such banks
can write leases at rates, which are hard to match by the leasing companies. The situation is compounded
by Modarabas, which enjoy an almost Tax Free Status, also serving as tough competitors to the leasing
companies.

Taxation

The Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), despite a number of representations made by your Company, even
at the level of the Finance Minister, has remained oblivious to the predicaments of the Leasing Sector,
as a whole, with respect particularly to privately-owned leasing companies. Leasing is all about Tax
Management. In the absence of an enabling and conducive taxation regime, it is almost impossible for a
leasing company to maintain its profitability profile.

Two adverse tax measures have been undertaken by the FBR from the standpoint of leasing companies.
To begin with, the Initial Depreciation Allowance admissible, for a first time use of assets in Pakistan, has
been halved to 25% from the originally available rate of 50%. This has, in one sharp blow, curtailed the
ability of leasing companies to enjoy temporary Tax Losses arising from Depreciation on leased assets,
thereby reducing their appetite for financing larger amounts of Plant & Equipment.

The second discouraging step taken under The Federal Finance Act 2014 was the introduction of an
Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) @ 17%, which has been retrospectively applied on Accounting Income,
starting from Tax Year 2014. This has increased the tax burden on leasing companies, as compared to
other financial institutions engaged in a similar business activity, such as banks and modarabas. Your
Company will file a Constitutional Petition in Sindh High Court against the imposition of ACT. It is hoped,
that PGL would be exempted from a levying of this Tax, as a result of the Company’s Petition.

The Corporate Tax Rate, currently standing at 29%, has been approved to be maintained at 29% in the
Finance Bill 2020. However, some preferential Tax Reforms shall also be needed for the Leasing Sector
per se, with the intent of reducing the incidence of Taxation thereon, for making Leasing Companies as
viable as Banks and Modarabas.

On June 15, 2016, Order-in-original No. 551 of 2016 was passed by the Assistant Commissioner of Sindh
Revenue Board (SRB) under section 23, 43(2)(3)(6d) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011(the
Act) whereby sales tax demand of Rs. 3.199 million was created against the Company for Tax Years 2012
to 2015. This demand included sum of Rs. 2.353 million being sales tax charged on income from Gross
ljarah operations. An appeal was filed against the said Order before the Commissioner (Appeals) of the
SRB by the Company under section 57 of the Act which was not allowed by the Commissioner (Appeals)
vide his Order-in-Appeal No. 20 of 2017 dated March 01, 2017. An appeal against the order of Assistant
Commissioner of SRB and Order-in-Appeal of Commissioner (Appeals) was also filed by the Company
in the Appellate Tribunal (AT) of SRB under section 61 of the Act which has also been dismissed by the
AT of SRB vide its Order in Appeal No. AT-18/2017 dated April 30, 2019 on the ground that ljarah
transactions being undertaken by the Company are similar to an operating lease arrangement in which
sales tax is chargeable on Gross ljarah rental amount. The Company has filed a reference against the
order of the AT of SRB in the Honorable High Court of Sindh and on June 10, 2019 has been granted a
stay against the recovery of the disputed tax demand by the SRB. As demand created by the SRB was
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unrealistic and much more than the profit earned by PGL on ljarah operations, therefore the Board of
Directors of the Company, in their Meeting held on 20 April 2015, decided not to further engage in ljarah
financing. If this state of affairs persists, sooner or later, banks and other NBFIs would also need to
disengage from ljarah financing, resulting in a serious setback for Islamic Financing.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Your Company is complying with the requirements of "The Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017" (the 'Code’) as and when applicable in both letter and spirit. The Review
Report of the External Auditors to the Members, represented by the Statements in Compliance with the
Best Practices of the Code of Corporate Governance, is appended to this Report

Board of Directors
The tenure of the Board ended on April 21,2019. In the Extra—Ordinary General Meeting held on April

22,2019, at the Registered Office of the Company, the Shareholders of the Company approved the
appointment of the following as the Directors of the Company for the next tenure of three (3) years:

S. Name of Member

Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi

Mr. Pervez Inam

Mr. Fawad S. Mailk

Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo

Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.)
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi
Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed

Ms. Sitwat Farrukh *

Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rahman Pasha

©

o|o|~|o|o|s|w|N|e|=

Of a total number of Nine (09) Directors presently comprising the Board of the Company, Eight (8) directors
are male and One (1) is female. The Board has Three (03) Independent and Five (05) non-executive
directors, and One (01) Executive Director represented by the Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

*Subsequent to the year end, Ms. Sitwat Farrukh has resigned from the directorship of the Company with effect from July 19, 2019.

Till June 30, 2019 Four (04) directors of the Company have acquired the required Certificate of Directors
Training Course, while One (01) is exempted from this requirement.

It is to be noted that changes taking place, from time to time, in the domestic and international business
environment, along with regulatory changes, were regularly discussed between the Directors in the BOD
Meetings held during the year.

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee (HR & RC)
Keeping in view the requirements of The Code of Corporate Governance, the Human Resource and

Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors of your Company has been re-constituted after the
appointment of Board of Directors in April 2019 and comprises of the following members:

S.No. Name of Member Designation
1. Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo Chairman

2. Mr. Pervez Inam Member

3. Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member

4, Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha Member

5. Ms. Mehreen Usama Secretary
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Before the appointment of directors in April 2019, the composition of the Committee was as under:

S.No. Name of Member Designation
1. Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) Chairman

2. Mr. Pervez Inam Member

3. Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member

4. Lt. Col. Saleem Ahmed Zafar (Retd.) Member

5 Ms. Mehreen Usama Secretary

Audit Committee

The Board of Directors, in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance, has established an Audit
Committee consisting of the following directors. During the year under review Four (04) meetings of the
Audit Committee were held. The meeting-wise attendance details of are given below:

S.No. Name of Member Designation No. of Meetings Attended
1. Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed Chairman 4
2. Mr. Rizwan Humayun * Member 3
3. Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) Member 3
4. Mr. Shaheed H Gaylani * Member 4
5. Mr. Pervez Inam Member 3
6. Ms. Farah Farooq Secretary 3

* Retired as director on April 21, 2019

The Audit Committee meetings during the year were held before the appointment of directors, after which
the Committee has be re-constituted in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance and comprises
of the following members:

S.No. Name of Member Designation
1. Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed Chairman

2. Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi Member

3. Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) Member

4. Mr. Pervez Inam Member

5. Ms. Farah Farooq Secretary

Directors’ Remuneration

The Company has a policy in place that ensures formal and transparent procedures for fixing the
remuneration of Directors. The remuneration payable to the Directors for attending Board meetings is duly
fixed and approved by the Board.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As a part of its corporate social responsibility, the Company encourage fresh graduates and under-
graduates to avail paid internships with PGL so as to enrich their professional knowledge base, particularly
relating to the financial sector.

Credit Rating

It should be a matter of great satisfaction for the Company’s Shareholders to note, that VIS, following a

detailed analysis and evaluation of your Company’s performance, on April 15, 2019 re-affirmed the
Company'’s Entity Ratings as under:

. Medium to Long-term Rating: A-;
. Short-term Rating: A-2; and
. Outlook: Stable.
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Auditors

For FY 2018-19 Messers BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants were re-appointed as statutory
auditors after audit of FY 2017-18. The retiring auditors have completed the statutory period of five years
of their appointment as Auditors of PGL.

The Board of Directors wishes to place, on record, its appreciation for the high standards of professionalism,
integrity and ethics maintained by Messers BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, during their
tenure as Auditors of the Company.

As recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board has approved the proposal to appoint Messers Grant
Thornton Anjum Rahman, Chartered Accountants as the statutory auditors of the Company for FY 2019-
20, subject to the approval of the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Acknowledgements

The Board would like to place on record its appreciation for the management team of your Company, and
each and every member of its staff, for their hard work and dedication, which has been reflected in a
consistently maintained and satisfactory performance of your Company under a challenging economic
environment. We, the Members of the Board, as representatives of the Shareholders of the Company,
assure the management and staff of the Company of our continued support and commitment towards
strengthening the Company and leading it to maintain its growth and performance. We are confident, that
the management and the staff will continue to serve the customers of the Company with the same zeal,
as demonstrated by them in all the previous years, enabling your Company to further improve its reputation
in the financial services sector of Pakistan.

The Board also acknowledges the cooperation and guidance extended to the Company by the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) and other regulatory
authorities. Their role is critical in developing the Financial Services Sector and we hope that their actions
will continue to strengthen this sector. The Board would also like to praise the NBFI's & Modaraba
Association of Pakistan for its assistance and support in professionally safe-guarding your Company’s
interest.

At the end, we would like to thank our valued Shareholders, Customers, Bankers, Investors and other
Stakeholders for their valuable support during the year. We look forward to reinforcing and building this
relationship further, in the years to come.

Statements in Compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has reviewed the Code of Corporate Governance and confirms the correctness
of the following statements to the best of its knowledge and belief:

. Financial statements prepared by the management of Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited present
fairly, its state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

. Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of the financial
statements and the accounting estimates presented in the report are based on reasonable and
prudent judgment.

. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in

preparation of financial statements and any departures there from has been adequately disclosed
and explained.

. The system of internal control is sound in design, and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.
. There is no significant doubt upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern.
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. There was no trade in shares of the Company, carried out by its directors, CEO, COO, CFO,
Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children.

. There has been no material departure from best practices of corporate governance, as detailed
in the listing regulations.

Pattern of Shareholding

Pattern of Shareholdings, as required by the Code of Corporate Governance, as at June 30, 2019, is
appended at the end of this Report.

Significant deviations in the operating results, from the preceding financial year, have been explained at
the beginning of this Report, along with reasons thereof.

Key Operating and Financial Data for the last six (6) years 2014 — 2019

Vear ended 30th June 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Operational Results: | = secececececcccccecananans Rupees -------------------------
Revenues 243,892,047 200,380,195 172,211,411 151,671,360 120,800,853 94,648,511
Lease Revenue 218,862,571 178,154,663 153,030,380 142,475,688 117,152,534 89,270,252
Profit before Taxation 71,185,355 80,602,379 65,501,467 51,186,129 54,260,991 47,678,901
Profit after Taxation 64,378,140 69,368,392 47,076,209 40,714,397 50,284,982 29,220,611
Finance Cost 78,012,463 47,682,251 30,121,776 28,093,726 20,306,096 8,372,942
Provision for Potental Lease Losses (1,307,173) (442,820) (52,620) 1,420,902
Provision against diminishing

Musharaka receivable (9,394,500)
Dividend/(proposed) % 7.50% 12.50% 7.50% 5%
Statement of Financial Positon:
Shareholders Equity 664,814,384 632,104,936 581,720,337 545,305,956 505,500,727 452,496,423
Surplus on Revaluation of Assets 90,504,204 90,504,204 89,229,496 79,356,037 41,949,605 42,326,603
Other Reserves 414,443,364 382,833,609 329,676,712 293,197,975 249,535,302 196,919,786
Working Capital 208,524,942 10,454,214 (102,605,219) 9,289,967 31,071,397 83,786,321
Non-current Liabilities 1,286,555,078 986,792,933 755,442,822 657,223,195 486,656,368 334,515,596
Long-term Loans 49,999,996 20,833,331 37,499,999
Investments 63,465,086 62,555,748 66,467,011 43,458,506 28,206,036 23,935,647
Financial Ratios:
Income / Expense Ratio 1.55 1.66 1.61 1.51 1.82 2.08
Earning per Share (in Rs) 2.54 2.73 1.86 1.60 1.98 115
Debt / Equity Ratio 0.67 0.31 0.06 NIL NIL NIL
Current Ratio 1.34 1.01 0.86 1.02 1.07 122
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Board Mettings

Four (04) Board Meetings were held during the year under review. Details of attendance are as follows:

S. No. Name of Director No. of Meetings Attended

Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi

Mr. Pervez Inam

Mr. Fawad Salim Malik

Mr. Shaheed H Gaylani *

Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.)

Lt. Col. Saleem Ahmed Zafar (Retd.) *
Mr. Rizwan Humayun *

Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed

Mr. Mahfuz ur Rehman Pasha

OR[N AW N
) ENY ENY BNy [ Y NY R V) BN

* Retired as Director on April 21, 2019

Statutory Payment of Rs. 2,162,488 on account of taxes, duties, levies and/or charges was outstanding
against the Company as on June 30, 2019.

Value of Investments of the Staff Provident Fund stood at Rs. 4,973,818 as at June 30, 2019. This
represents funds placed with a rated commercial bank and investment in the registered units of the National
Investment Trust.

Chairman Chief Executive Officer

September 26, 2019
Karachi
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= Pak-Gulf Leasing STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
Companv Limited COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
pany GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are nine (9) as per the following:

a. Male: Eight (8)
b. Female: One (1)*

2. The composition of the Board of Directors (the Board) is as follows:
Category Names
Independent Directors Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed

Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo

Ms. Sitwat Farrukh*

Other Non-Executive Directors Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi

Mr. Fawad Salim Malik

Mr. Pervez Inam

Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd)
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi

Executive Director Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha
* Subsequent to the year end, Ms.Sitwat has resigned from the directorship of the Company w.e.f.
July 19, 2019

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five
listed companies, including this Company.

4. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant

policies of the Company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with
the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters
have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the
Act and these Regulations.

7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board.

8. The Board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. Till June 30, 2019, following four (4) directors of the Company have acquired the required
certificate of Directors Training Program while one (1) is exempt from this requirement:

Directors

i Mahfuz-ur-Rahman Pasha
ii. Pervez Inam

iil. Ismail H. Ahmed

iv. Fawad Salim Malik

10. The Board has approved appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and complied
with relevant requirements of the Regulations. However, the position of CFO and Company
Secretary are being held by the same person.
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11.

12.

a)

b)

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED
COMPANIES (CODE OF CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Pak-Gulf Leasing
Company Limited

CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Ismail H Ahmed Chairman
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi Member
Mr. Pervez Inam Member
Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd) Member
Ms. Farah Farooq Secretary
HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. jan Ali Khan Junejo Chairman
Mr. Pervez Inam Member
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member
Mr. Mahfuz-ur-Rehman Pasha Member
Ms. Mehreen Usama Secretary

Before the election of the directors on April 22, 2019 the composition of the Committees was as follow:

a)

b)

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Chief Executive Officer

Audit Committee

Mr. Ismail H Ahmed Chairman
Mr. Rizwan Humayun Member
Mr. Pervez Inam Member
Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd) Member
Mr. Shaheed H. Gaylani Member
Ms. Farah Farooq Secretary
HR and Remuneration Committee

Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd) Chairman
Mr. Pervez Inam Member
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi Member
Lt. Col Saleem Ahmed Zafar (Retd) Member
Ms. Mehreen Usama Secretary

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance.

The frequency of meetings of the committee were as per following:

a) Audit Committee:(four quarterly meetings)
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: (one yearly meeting)

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function comprising of people who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the
policies and procedures of the Company.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor
children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics
as adopted by the ICAP.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

Director
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INDEPEHDENT AUDITOR'S REVIEW REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PAR-GULF LEASIHG COMPANY
LIMITED OM THE STATEMENT OF COMPLIAMCE COMTAIMED IM LISTED COMPAMIES (CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERMANCE) REGULATINS, 2017

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Compandes (Code of
Corporate Govemance] Regulations, 2047 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Drectors of
Pak-Gull Leasing Company Limdted for the year ended Jume 30, F019% in accordance with the
requiremments of regulation 40 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our respansibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status
of the Company's compdiance with the praviglans of the Begulations and raport if it does not and to
highlight any non-compdlance with the requirements of the Regulations. & review s lmited
primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the
Company ta comply with the Regulations,

A5 a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accaunting and intermnal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and davelop an effective audit
approach, We are mof reguired to consider whether the Board of Directors” stabement on mtesnal
control covers all risks and controds or to form an opinfon on the effectiveness of such internal
congrols, the Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Aupdit Comamittes, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Comemittes, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements af
sectbon 208 of the Companbes Act, 2017, We are only reguired and have ensured compdiance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party tramactions by the Boasrd of
Irrectors upon recommendation of the Audit Committes. We have nol carried oul proceduras to
assess and determine the Company's process for kientification of related parties and that whether
the related party trarmsactions were urddartaken ab arm™s length price or not,

Based on owr review, nothing has come to our attention which causes ws to Delieve that the
Statsment of Compliance does nat appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respacts, with the requirements contained In the Regulaticns as applicable to the Comparny far the
yaur énded e 30, 2019,

Further, we highlight below imtance of non-campliance with the requiremernts of the Regulations
ay reflectad in the paragraph reference where this fe stated & the Statement of Compliance:

Paragraph
5. Mo | Reference | Description

1 10 | The position of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary are being |
hald by same person, |
H &\::, L"—-—.__ _ -a-""-.t\_
DATED: SEPTEMBER 26, 2019 CHARTERED ACCOUMTANTS

R Engagement Partner: Tulfikar Ali Cauyser

BDY Erahim & Co. Chartered Accountants

B Ehrairs B Ca., o Puiiinn reghberend partoo e p B K o mankes of 100 brismstionsl Linred. § UE carmpsy) Baoted by paasnies.
a8 Forrn pard of Lke beicsmatiensd B sk of indeperdes: merdir 119
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Shariah Review Report

For the period ended fune 2005

Pak Gulf Leasing Company Lmited {PGL) established an Islamic Finarce Divislon on 15t March
2013. PGL, in consultation with the undersigned, deweloped and execuled Shariah-complaint
ligrah and Diminishing products.

The year under rewiew was the seventh yaar of Islamie financing at PEL In this year no Jarekh o
Diminighing Mushorokeh transacton could be written however, some previows transactions
matured successtully during this yaar,

I certify that the treasury function and accounting treatrnent of foroh and Dvminishing
Mushorokah trangsactions are in conformity o Shariah regueresments

{weoukd ke to take this opportunity 1o offer pralse 1o Almighty Allah and seek His Guidance and
Blessirgs and bo exgeess iy best wiches for further progress, development and peosperity of Pak
Gulf Leasing Company Umited and kslamic Finance.

J.'lE-__r'hJ alh -:..u-_u. l-n.':;._..l.l:- r-:!ll_..ll:

1)

Mufti Muhammad lbrahim Essa

C.EO. & Director

Alhamd Shariah Advisary Sarvioes [Pt ) Lirited
19 Aug, W19
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IHDEPEMDEMT ALIDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF PAK-GULF LEASING COMPANY LIMITEDR
Repart an the Audit of the Financlal Statements

Dpirion

‘Wi have audted the sarmezed Teancial statements of PAK-GULF LEASING CORPBAKY LIMITED {the
Compary], which comprise the stalement of Tnancial pesition as a3 June 30, 2009, and prodic and
boss account, statement of comprebensse ircome, the statemst of cah Mows, the sratement of
chardes i aquily for the year then ended, and motes to the financisl statements, inclsding a
summary ol significant acioumTmg Dolicies and ather explaratony inlormation, nd we stabe that
wir have cbitained all the micrmation amnd explarations wiich, G the ke ol our adedadge and
beliod, wene necessary far the puspirses of the audit.

I o cpinion ared to s best ol our information and accnrding to the explanations given 1o us, the
statenent of Frencal position, profit amd 1688 account, slatement of Comprehensive incoms, the
staternent of cash flows and the statemept of changed i aguity Logeher w3ilb (he poles formbsg
part thereol conform with the accounting and reporting standsrds as soplicable in Pestan and
e the infermatian reguined By the Companies Aci, M7 (X0 of 20173, in the manreT so required
and respectively ghve a true and fakr view of dee siate of the Compary’s alfass as at June 30, 2019
ard af the profit and ather compreherates fogs, its cash flows and the charges . equity for the
wear then pndied,

Basis for Opinion

Wi comnifucted our audit inaccordance with Internaticral Standsrnds on Audeling (54s) a3 apgrlicable
in Pakistan, Cue responsibilities under these standards arg further descrbed o the Auditor's
Besponsibilities for the Awdit of Ghe Financial SLstesments sectin of oul S80Ort, We are
independent of the Compary n accordance with the Interpational Ethics Sfardaccs Board for
Acooirtants' Cogle of Exhécs for Professional Accountants as adopted by ithe nstitute of Chartered
Accourtarts of Pakistan {the Code)l and we Pave Tulldled cor gifer ethical respoesibllives In
accordance with the Code. ‘We belee thar the sudit evidence we bave obtainesd & sulficient and
apprapriate to prowice g badis [o7 our opeeeon,

Fey huidin Matress
Eey audit matters are those matters that, in our professional Judgment, were of most significance
i our audit of the financlal staterwents of the current perod. Thess matters were addressed = the

cenext of aur sl of the Tinancial stacements as & whaole, and in farming ouF opénion thereon,
ard we do not provide a senarste gpinion on hee matters

Page - 1

BRO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Aocountants
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Falloering are the Key audit matters:

3. Mo | Key audit matbers.

Howe the matter was sddressed moour
audit

Extstaroe and valuation of Het Investment

in Finance Lease (WIFL)

As disclomsd | mote 11 Eo Che Teweocesd
statemants of the Company {or the year
ended June 30, 3019, WFL has & signilicant
impact on the firancial tatements that
represents BS% af the tolal assets of the

Commpamy oy At e vear gnd.

45 HIFL represents a significant element of
the firarcial statements, & dSscreparcy in
the salmbicn or edstence of HIFL could
e he  financial watements Lo be
materfally messtated which would  also |
Impact the Coampanmy's reported |
perfarmance as the valuation of HIFL b5 the
main drives ol the perfomance of the

Comparry.

-IhhHufirr:ﬂ-p'rlf'kmnfmm
| orelation bo the [otal assets and the
fimancial statemnts as a whobe, we Fave
considerad the evstence and valuation of
HEFL as @ ki audit matter,

Oui gl work incliaded assedsiceg and
testing the design ard operations of key
conbngly over [he recognétion, valuation
and exiztence of HIFL.

We perfarmed defailed ssessment of the
credhit appeawval procedures of (he leasss
sanctioned in accordance with the Hon-
Banking Finance Companies and Motified
Entities  Regulatioes, 2008 [the  WEFC
Regulaticre} and peroemesd omedit reviess
on sampled lessess for identMication of
sublecine provisioning. In addition, we
haee clroularized condirmations to smplod
lesiees and ecked repaymenl received
from the same,

We  tested  comirod | over  addition,
termination and peviodic valuation of the
Wasy partfollo and  perfarmed  ether
sinlantive audit procedures on the year-
el btances of the partfofio including
reyiew of the documentation requred in
thee leaae files of the parties, werification
of the minimam fease payrents and HIFL
a4 &1 the year-and by recalculation of the
balsnoes  through  lease  amortization
schedides on sample basis &8 per [A5-17
'LeasesT,

Page - 1
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| How the matter was addreiied in our |

wadin

We asvessed the Lompany s compliance
wilfs the Fegaremants of  Mon-Banking
Faance Companies snad Mol¥isd Ergities
Requiztiors, J00& {the Aegulations] ond
coimti i documaiis in retatlom Bo bhe
Loncpsiption of NMFL pad expionre limils
prescribed in the  Regulstios  and
docampnts and thr adequacy of disclmres
&2 mey b= applxable in stustion of aon-
comgdlance,

We aiso evaluazed the adequacy of the
deeall  distlomess In e TiRsscial
viabemiends  In orespect of  HMFL W
actordance with the requirements of the
HBFD  Regulatiors:  and  whather  ihe
Compary'y deciosures . relation b KIFL
&E compiaant with the relevant aocounting
Yancdarck

Information Oteer than the Financial Statemests and AdiEor's Report Therean

Mamagement is responsble for the other nformation. The other infommation comprives the
infermarion mdided b che ansal repof bt Goes not ncude ke Brancial statements and oo

auchlonrs repart Lherage

O opndom oo She financial atemends G0es ndl cower 1he oher eformstion and wit do not

expres amy form of asgrance conclighon

hierenn

I conmciion with our wadit ol the finarcial statements, owrn fospensiD@dy & 1o read the olher
information and, In dodng 2o, comider whether che other tnlormation Iy matedally inpoashtent with
the financial statemants or cur knowledge obtained in the sudit or othersie sppeans bo be
msleriglly misstared I, bessd on the work we Fave performed, we Conclude Dhal therns i a
meterisl mizstatement of the other wiormation, we are fequired o reparl thet Tect, ‘We bave

nathing &o report in B regand

B0Q Ebrahim & Co, Chartered Accountants
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Besponsibiiitios of Management and Dosrd of Directors for the Financial Stabesments

Management. = rezponsicée for the preparation and Tair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with the acocunting and roporting stanchrds as applicabde In Pakistan and the
reguirements of Comganies Aol DIAF00X of DOITH and for duch iedermal contral a3 mearagement
determines @ necessary 1o enable the preperation of financial statements that 2re free from
material svsstatemant, whasther dug to Traud o simae,

In preparing the finandal statements, management |5 mesporeible for asessing the Company™s
wwity 10 Contieas &g @ going concemn, dischosing, &5 applicable, mettens relsted 1o going Condem
s edng the going conoern basis of accounting unless management esther intencs 1o Hqundate the
Lompany or to cease operabions, or has oo realishc albemathee it to 4o 5

Board of drectors are responsible for oversesing the Comgany™s Tnancial repoeting process.
Aupditor’'s Responsibilitios for tho Audit of the Finsncial Statemeats

Our ghpectives ars b obfain reasonsble sasurance gbout whether the linanclal stalemants & &
whole are free from materlal misstatement. wheiher due o fraad or eror, and o Bage e
auditas repert That e ludes o cginion, Reasonalle assurance i & high eval of ssurance, bt =
miot 3 guarantes that &n st conducted in acoordance with SAs as apgpiioahie in Fakistan will
alvays detact a material missiaement when |[ exils. Mssistemends can artde rom fracd or ermor
and are considered material i, indridually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be espected
i Inflesencd the econnmic dackions of wEars Laken on U bk of tese financial $atements,

&4 part of an sudit in acoordance with Bas as applicable = Pakistan, we exencise professional
Judgment and maintaln professional skept i throughoul the sodi. We atis

s ety And assesd the rigks of materis! misslatement of the (mancial statements, whather due
to dreead or eror, design and perfom audit procedores esponsihen bo those risks, and obtain
w8t eviderce that is sullickent and appropriabe ta provide a basi fo our opinion, The risk of
i cletecting a matérial misstalement resulting from fraud i3 higher than for one resullicg
{rom error, as fraud may imobve collusion, forgony, Intergional omissions, misregresentations,
of the geerricks of inbevnal Contnel

# Dbtain an wrderstanding nf intermal control relevart to the audit inoorder 1o design aidit
procedhe et that are appropniate in the cirtumslances, Bul nal ar the purpeze of expressing an
opinion on the effectivensss of the Compamy™s internal control.

=  Evaluate the appopristonses ol acccunting pollcie ined and the revsonablenss af scoounling
etimated and relatid disclovures made by maragoment.

Page - 4
BOC Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants
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& Conchide on the appraprislere=a of mandgement™ uie of thd §oing oondsm Basss of socounting
wl, baded o the audit avidence obtained, whother a material uncestainty ewists related 1o
ewenis ar conditions Uhal may cenl sigiificant doubt o the Companmy's sbility 1o oontinie a5 3
going concern. Howe concliaie that a material uncertaimty ewats, we are required 1o draw
atterdion in our audibor's jepoe® 19 e related dischosuies in thie financia] stabesmenls or, 0
such dischorsures are iradequate, to modily owe opinion. Our condusions are based on the audi
ewicerice obbasresd up 1o the dale of our scchilen”s report. Hoeeser, Tulofe éeeents oF Comdithonrs
My causn the Company 1o Cease to continue as a going concem..

& Evalate (he gyecal] presentalion, sLrodione s content of the Tinaestial sistemerds, incbuding
the dlsclosures, and whether the firancial statements represend the underlying transactions
orvd Everits in o manner that odhesyves fair presenlition,

We communscate wiih the board of dirsctors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the aodit and significant audit findings, ischaefing sme significant deficiencies in
intermal contral that we identify during cur audit,

We also prowids the board of directors with a staterment that we have complied with relevant
ethical recpinemnents reganding independance, and o commuicate with them all relationships and
other matters ihat may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where aoplicable,
relaned safugusids,

From (M matters communlcaled with the board of direciors, we determing (hoes malies thal
were ol most slenifizance In the audic af the financial stataments of the oument period and ane
therefore the ey audit matters. We describe these matters m o auditor's report unless law or
regulabion peedlidtes pubilie diilodrs abduil the matned o wisen, i exlremely rane Cirduamalanoes,
wir detarmine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

conseguences of doing o would reasonably be erpecied Do aulveeigh Uhe puldsc inbevest Deaehils of
sich communication.

Report on Other Legad and Regulatory Bequirements
Basgd on our audit, we further repart that in our opinion:

4] propes books of actount have been kepl by the Company a5 required by the Companies ACT,
2097 J41% of 2017

bl the statemaent al financlal posiion, statement ol profit and loss account, watement ol
comprehenze income, the stabement of cazh flews and the stalement of charges o osogrnly
legechar with Uhe ngbess Theseon fase bean drosm up in condormity with the Companies Act,
JOUT JRIX of 2047) and ane i agreement with the books of aocount and retunm;

Page - &
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C] InvesImants madce, dxpenditure Incurred and guarantees ectanded during the year were for the
purporss of the Comparey's business; and

dl zakut deductible at source under the Takat and Lshr Ordieance, 1380 (50 of 19800, was
deducted by the Compamy and deposibed in the Central Taket Fund established under s=ction T
of ihak Ordirance,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in s ndependent auditor's repart Is Tulllar A
Cager,

oo ®
DATED- SEPTEMEER 36, 2049 DD EDRAHIM B CO.
s, CHARTERED ACCDUMTANTS
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Pak-Gulf Leasing
:Si=#% Company Limited

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and bank balances

Short term investments

Other receivables - net

ljarah rental receivables

Advance to employees

Accrued mark-up / return on investments
Prepayments

Current portion of net investment in finance lease
Current portion of long-term investments
Current portion of diminishing musharaka receivable
Taxation - net

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Net investment in finance lease
Long-term investments

Diminishing musharaka receivable
Long-term deposits

Investment property

Property, plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Unclaimed dividend

Accrued mark-up

Current portion of certificates of investment

Short term borrowings

Current portion of long-term loan

Current portion of advance rental
against ljarah leasing

Current portion of long-term deposits

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Long-term deposits

Long-term loan

Certificates of investment

Advance rental against ljarah leasing

Deferred taxation - net

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Financed by:
Share capital
Capital Reserves
Statutory reserve
Reserve for issue of bonus shares
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of deferred tax
Surplus on revaluation of investments classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profit

Contingencies and commitments

Note

© 0o~

10

11
13
14
12

11
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21.2
22
23
25
24

24
23
21.2
25
26

27

28
28

29
28

28

30

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018
---------- Rupees -==-aeun-x
16,410,061 15,600,826
57,433,161 40,386,562
25,835,690 5,247,451
536,780 536,780
57,490 225,663
202,301 1,031,624
2,573,005 2,236,243
711,771,188 753,478,039
6,031,925 16,045,277
- 4,674,337
4,264,832 5,980,061
825,116,433 845,442,863
1,651,541,206 1,495,119,110
- 6,123,909
9,394,499 14,389,663
112,500 300,460
154,440,000 146,718,000
19,620,239 39,112,572
1,567,260 1,610,818
1,836,675,704 1,703,374,532
2,661,792,137 2,548,817,395
38,846,091 35,029,892
1,996,977 480,438
22,857,201 16,035,582
18,375,094 173,593,636
414,340,936 387,568,906
20,833,331 16,666,668
2,552,045 5,557,912
96,789,816 200,055,615
616,591,491 834,988,649
691,163,737 587,231,293
29,166,665 4,166,663
373,937,581 204,533,908
633,918 3,178,676
191,653,177 187,682,393
1,286,555,078 986,792,933

e e e—

1,903,146,569

————

1,821,781,582

758,645,568 727,035,813
253,698,000 253,698,000
105,910,520 93,034,892
4,402,000 4,402,000
90,504,204 90,504,204
1,759,720 2,815,855
202,576,444 190,756,951
302,371,124 282,580,862
758,645,568 727,035,813

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer



PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees -----------
INCOME
Income from financing operations 31 218,862,571 178,154,663
Other operating Income
Return on investments 32 6,882,124 5,090,091
Other income 33 18,147,352 17,135,441
25,029,476 22,225,532
243,892,047 200,380,195
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and operating expenses 34 78,833,379 72,584,126
Finance cost 35 78,012,463 47,682,251
Other charges 240,682 135,284
157,086,524 120,401,661
Operating profit before provision 86,805,523 79,978,534
Provision for potential lease losses - net 11.3 (1,307,173) (442,820)
Provision against diminishing musharaka receivable - net (9,394,500) -
Provision against litigation receivable - net 9.3 (4,918,495) 1,066,665
Profit before taxation 71,185,355 80,602,379
Taxation 36 6,807,215 11,233,987
Profit for the year 64,378,140 69,368,392
Earning per share-basic and diluted 37 2.54 2.73

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees -----------

Profit for the year 64,378,140 69,368,392
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss account in

subsequent periods:
Deficit of revaluation of investment classified as fair value

through other comprehensive income 8 (1,056,135) (537,027)
Total comprehensive income for the year 63,322,005 68,831,365

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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2 Company Limited

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation

Adjustment for:

Depreciation 17.1&17.2
Amortisation 18.1
Finance cost 35
Amortisation of (discount) / premiun on investment in PIBs
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment property 33
Provision for potential lease losses - net

Provison against diminishing musharaka receivable - net
Provision against litigation receivable - net

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movement in working capital
Decrease / (increase) in current assets
Advance to employees

Accrued mark-up / return on investments
Other receivables - net

ljarah rental receivables

Long-term deposits

Prepayments

Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Cash generated from operations

Finance cost paid

Tax paid - net

Deposits received from lessees

Advance ljarah rental received from lessees
Decrease in diminishing musharaka receivables
Increase in net investment in finance lease - net

Net cash used in operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Additions in property, plant and equipment 17.1&17.2
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 17.3
Short-term investment in Market Treasury Bills - net

Long-term investment

Net cash used in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from certificates of investment - net 42
Dividend paid
Long-term loan - net 42

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the begining of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 41

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

2019 2018

----------- Rupees ---===-=---
71,185,355 80,602,379
19,832,997 21,393,307
43,558 43,557
78,012,463 47,682,251
87,261 (1,923)
(7,722,000) (7,722,000)
1,307,173 442,820

9,394,500 -
4,918,495 (1,066,665)

(7,992) -
105.866.455 60.771.347
177,051,810 141,373,726
168,173 38,581
829,323 501,131
(25,506,734) (1,029,882)
- 142,764

187,960 -
(336,762) 230,843
(24,658,040) (116,563)
5,332,738 11,323,773
157,726,508 152,580,936
(71,190,844) (44,082,118)
(1,121,202) (795,545)
666,645 174,374,164
(5,550,625) (5,864,522)
275,001 (19,064,000)
(116.022.418) (439.283.293)

(192,943,443) (334,715,314)

(35,216,935)

(182,134,378)

(340,672) (5,554,659)
8,000 -
(18,102,734) (1,623,842)

16,050,000 5,000,000
(2,385,406) (2,178,501)
14,185,131 (26,002,629)
(31,712,250) (19,027,350)
29,166,665 (16.666.668)
11,639,546 (61,696,647)

(25,962, 795)

(246,009,526)

(371.,968,080) (125,958,554)

(397,930,875)

(371,968,080)

The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive Officer Director
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Pak-Gulf Leasing STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Companv Limited FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Share Reserves
capital i
p Capital Revenue Total Total
Statutory  Resemefor _Suluson SaiBiion o Unappropriaed  feserves  equity
reserve iSsueof  property, plant |r|1ves.tfr.n %nts profit
bonus shares  and equipment ©'F5R1 G B
-netoftax through other
comprehensive
Iincome
-------------------- (Rupegs) = = == = = = = = = e e e - == = -
Balance as at July 01, 2017 253,698,000 79,161,214 4,402,000 89,229,496 3,352,882 246113498 422,259,090 675,957,090
Transaction with owners
Final dividend for the year ended
June 30, 2017 @ Rs.0.75 per share - . - - - (19,027,350)  (19,027,350) (19,027,350)
Total comprehensive income
for the year ended June 30, 2018
Profit for year - - - - - 69,368,392 69,368,392|[ 69,368,392
Other comprehensive income
Surplus on revaluation of investments
classified as available for sale - - - - (537,027) - (537,027 (537,027)
- - - (537,027) 69,368,392 68,831,365 68,831,365
Effect of change in tax rate on surplus
on revaluation of property, plant &
equipment - - - 1,274,708 - - 1,274,708 1,274,708
Transfer to statutory reserve
(note 28.1) - 13,873,678 - - - (13,873,678)
Balance as at June 30, 2018 253,698,000 93,034,892 4,402,000 90,504,204 2815855 282,580,862 473,337,813 727,035,813
Transaction with owners
Final dividend for the year
ended June 30, 2018 @ Rs. 1.25
per share - - - - - (31,712,250) (31,712,250)  (31,712,250)
Total comprehensive income
for the year ended June 30,
2019
Profit for the year - - - - - 64,378,140 64,378,140([ 64,378,140
Other comprehensive income
Deficit on revaluation of investments
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income - - - - (1,056,135) - (1,056,135)]] (1,056,135)
- - (1,056,135) 64,378,140 63,322,005 63,322,005
Transfer to statutory reserve
(note 28.1) - 12,875,628 - - - (12,875.628) - -
Balance as at June 30, 2019 253,698,000 105,910,520 4,402,000 90,504,204 1,759,720 302,371,124 504,947,568 758,645,568
The annexed notes 1 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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I% Pak-Gulf Leasing ~NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Limited FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
1 STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS
1.1 Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited ("the Company") was incorporated in Pakistan on December

27, 1994 as a public limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 and
commenced its operations on September 16, 1996. The Company is principally engaged in the
business of leasing and is listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited.

1.2 Regulation 4 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 vide
SRO 1002(1)/2015 dated October 15, 2015, requires an existing deposit taking leasing company
to maintain, at all times, minimum equity of Rs. 500 million by November 25, 2016. The equity
of the Company as at June 30, 2019 is Rs. 664.814 million which is Rs. 164.814 million in excess
of the minimum equity requirement.

1.3 JCR-VIS Credit Rating Company Limited (JCR-VIS) has re-affirmed A- and A-2 ratings to the
Company for medium to long term and short term, respectively on April 15, 2019.

2 GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATION AND ADDRESSES OF BUSINESS UNITS
The registered office of the Company is located at UNIBRO House, Ground and Mezzanine Floor,

Plot No. 114, 9th East Street, Phase-1, Defence Housing Authority, Karachi and a branch office
is located at Office No. 202, 2nd Floor, Divine Mega Il, Opp Honda Point, New Airport Road,

Lahore.
3 BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in
Pakistan comprise of :

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017,

- Islamic Financial Accounting Standard - 2 ljarah (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with Part VIIIA
of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984;

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the
NBFC Rules), Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
(the NBFC Regulations).

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, Part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC Regulations differ from
the IFRS Standards and IFAS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017, Part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules and the NBFC
Regulations have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except that
investment property is stated at fair value and certain investments which have been classified
as 'fair value through other comprehensive income' are marked to market and carried at fair
value.

These financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for
cash flow information.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the functional and presentation
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Pak-Gulf Leasing ~NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Company Limited FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

currency of the Company. All financial information presented in Pakistani Rupees has been
rounded off to the nearest rupee unless otherwise stated.

4 NEW STANDARDS, INTERPRETATIONS AND AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED
ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

4.1 Amendments that are effective in current year and relevant to the Company

The Company has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as
applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard:

Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on
or after)

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 - Original Issue March 01,2018

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - finalised version, incorporating
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment,
general hedge accounting and derecognition July 01, 2018

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - reissue to incorporate a hedge
accounting chapter and permit the early application of the
requirements for presenting in other comprehensive income
the 'own credit' gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated under the fair value option without early applying
the other requirements of IFRS 9 July 01,2018

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments : Disclosures - additional hedge
accounting disclosures (and consequential amendments)
resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting
chapter in IFRS 9 July 01,2018

IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements-
amendments to permit an entity to elect to continue to apply
the hedge accounting requirements in IAS 39 for a fair value
hedge of the interest rate exposure of a portion of a portfolio
of financial assets or financial liabilities when IFRS 9 is
applied, and to extend the fair value option to certain contracts
that meet the 'own use' scope exception July 01,2018

IAS 40 Investment Property - amendments to clarify transfers of
property to, or from, investment property January 01,2018

4.2 Amendments that are effective in current year and not relevant to the Company
The Company has adopted the amendments to the following approved accounting standards as

applicable in Pakistan which became effective during the year from the dates mentioned below
against the respective standard:
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_' Effective date

(annual periods
beginning on

or after)

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment - amendments to clarify the classification

and measurement of share-based payment transactions January 01, 2018
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts - amendments regarding the interaction of

IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01, 2018
IFRS 5 Additional hedge accounting disclosures (and consequential

amendments) resulting from the introduction of the hedge accounting

chapter in IFRS 9 July 01, 2018
IFRS 8 Amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4 and IFRS 9 January 01,2018
IFRS 15 Original issue July 01,2018
IFRS 15 Clarifications to IFRS 15 July 01, 2018

Other than the amendments to standards mentioned above, there are certain annual improvements
made to IFRS that became effective during the year:

Annual Improvements to IFRSs (2014 — 2016) Cycle:

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards ~ January 01,2018

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures January 01, 2018

4.3 Amendments not yet effective

The following amendments to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan would
be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard:

Amendments to IFRS 2, IFRS 3, IFRS 6, IFRS 14, IAS 1, IAS 8, IAS 34,
IAS 37, IAS 38,IFRIC 12, IFRIC 19, IFRIC 20, IFRIC 22, and SIC-32 to
update these pronouncements with regard to references to and quotes from
the framework or to indicate where they refer to different version of the
Conceptual Framework. January 01, 2020

IFRS 3 Business Combinations - amendments to clarify the definition of
a business January 01, 2020

IFRS 8 Amendments regarding prepayment features with negative
compensation and modifications of financial liabilities January 01, 2019

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - amendments regarding prepayment features
with negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities
negative compensation and modifications of financial liabilities January 01, 2019

IAS1 Presentation of Financial Statements - amendments regarding the
definition of materiality January 01, 2020

IAS8  Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
- amendments regarding the definition of materiality January 01, 2020

IAS 19 Employee benefits - amendments regarding plan amendments,
curtailments or settlements January 01, 2019

IAS 17 Amendments regarding plan amendments, curtailments or
settlements January 01, 2019

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures - amendments
regarding long-term interests in associates and joint ventures. January 01, 2019
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Effective date
(annual periods
beginning on
or after)

The annual improvements to IFRSs that are effective from the dates mentioned below against
respective standards:

Annual improvements to IFRSs (2015 — 2017) Cycle:

IFRS 3 Business Combinations January 01, 2019
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements January 01, 2019
IAS 12 Income Taxes January 01, 2019
IAS 23 Borrowing Costs January 01, 2019

Standards or interpretations not yet effective
The following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board

(IASB), which have been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
effective from the dates mentioned against the respective standard:

IFRS 16 Leases January 01, 2019

The effects of IFRS 16 -Leases are still being assessed, as these new standards may have a
significant effect on the Company'’s future financial statements.

The following new standards and interpretations have been issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB), which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP):

IFRS 1  First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

The Company expects that the adoption of the other amendments and interpretations of the
standards will not have any material impact and therefore will not affect the Company's financial
statements in the period of initial application.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set
out below. These accounting policies have been consistently applied unless otherwise stated.

Financial instruments

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' was issued on July 24, 2017. This standard is adopted locally by
the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and is effective for reporting period / year
ending on or after June 30, 2019.

IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities
and some contracts to buy or sell non-financial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

The details of new significant accounting policies and the nature and effect of the changes to
previous accounting policies are set out below.
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Financial assets
Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities. However, it eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories for financial assets
of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.

The impact of IFRS 9 on the classification and measurement of financial assets is set out below.

Under IFRS 9, on initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised
cost; fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — debt investment; FVOCI — equity
investment; or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The classification of financial assets
under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed
and its contractual cash flow characteristics.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets; and

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above
are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as
at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would
otherwise arise.

A financial asset is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition.

The following accounting policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and

FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using

amortised cost the effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by

impairment losses (see (i) below). Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
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Debt investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
FVOCI calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains

and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends

FVOCI are recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified
to profit or loss.

The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement
categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of
the Company’s financial assets as at July 1, 2018.

Original New carrying
Original New Carrying amount
Note Classification Classification amount under under
Financial assets under IAS 39 under IFRS9 IAS 39 RupeeleB.S..g .....
Cash and bank balances (a) Loans and Amortised
receivables cost 15,600,826 15,600,826
Other receivable-net (a) Loans and Amortised
receivables cost 5,247,451 5,247,451
ljarah rental receivable (a) Loans and Amortised
receivables cost 536,780 536,780
Advance to employees (a) Loans and Amortised
receivables cost 225,663 225,663
Accrued mark-up / return on (a) Loans and Amortised
investment receivables cost 1,031,624 1,031,624
Net investment in finance  (a) Loans and Amortised
lease receivables cost 2,248,597,149 2,248,597,149
Diminishing musharaka (a) Loans and Amortised
receivable receivables cost 19,064,000 19,064,000
Long-term investments
Pakistan Investment Bonds (b) Held to maturity Amortised cost
22,169,186 22,169,186
Short term investments
National Investment (c)  Available for FVOCI
(Unit) Trust Sale 4,010,055 4,010,055
Market Treasury Bills (b) Held to maturity Amortised cost 36,376,507 36,376,507
(a) These financial assets classified as ‘loans and receivables' have been classified as amortised
cost.
(b) These financial assets classified as 'held to maturity' have been classified as amortised cost.
(c) These financial assets classified as 'available for sale' have been classified as fair value through

other comprehensive income.
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Impairment of financial assets

The impairment model under IFRS 9 requires the recognition of impairment based on expected
credit losses and replaces the incurred loss concept under IAS 39. The impairment model applies
to financial assets classified at amortised cost. The Company has recorded provisions as per
Schedule X, Regulation 25 of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations,
2008 as the requirement of local laws prevails over the requirements of IFRS 9.

Transition

The Company has used the exemption not to restate comparative periods. Comparative periods
have not generally been restated. Differences, if any, in the carrying amounts of financial assets
resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9 are recognised in statement of changes in equity as at
July 1, 2018. Accordingly, comparative information does not reflect the requirements of IFRS 9,
but rather those of IAS 39.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets
have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership.

Financial liabilities

The adoption of IFRS 9 has not had a significant effect on the Company’s accounting policies
related to financial liabilities.

All financial liabilities are recognised at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. These are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expired.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement
of Assets and Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hand and at banks are carried at nominal amount.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash balances and bank deposit, and other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, short-term running
finance facilities that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the
cash flow statement.

Net investment in finance lease

Leases where the Company transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership
of the leased assets to the lessees, are classified as finance leases.

The leased asset is derecognised and the present value of the lease receivable (net of initial
direct costs for negotiating and arranging the lease) is recognised on the statement of financial
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position. The difference between the gross lease receivables and the present value of the lease
receivables is recognised as unearned finance income.

Areceivable is recognised at an amount equal to the present value of the minimum lease payments
under the lease agreements, including guaranteed residual value, if any.

Each lease payment received is applied against the gross investment in the finance lease
receivable to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income. The finance income
is recognised in the profit and loss account on a basis that reflects a constant periodic rate of
return on the net investment in the finance lease receivables.

Initial direct costs incurred by the Company in negotiating and arranging finance leases are added
to finance lease receivables and are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account
over the lease term on the same basis as the finance lease income.

Provision for potential lease losses and provision for terminated leases

Calculating the provision for net investment in finance lease losses and provision for terminated
leases is subject to numerous judgments and estimates. In evaluating the adequacy of provision,
management considers various factors, including the requirements of the NBFC Regulations
issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the nature and characteristics of
the obligor, current economic conditions, credit concentrations, historical loss experience and
delinquencies. Lease receivables are charged off, when in the opinion of management, the
likelihood of any future collection is believed to be minimal.

Property, plant and equipment
These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amounts or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other subsequent
costs including repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit and loss account as and when
incurred.

Depreciation is charged using the straight line method, whereby the depreciable amount of an
asset is written off over its estimated useful life at the rates specified in note 17.1 after taking into
account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date.

Depreciation on additions is charged from the month the assets are put to use while no depreciation
is charged in the month in which the assets are disposed off.

Any surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is credited to the surplus on
revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amounts of assets do not differ materially from the fair value of such assets. To the extent of the
incremental depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the surplus on revaluation of operating
fixed assets (net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

Gains or losses on sale of assets are charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which
they arise, except that the related surplus on revaluation of assets (net of deferred taxation) is
transferred directly to unappropriated profit.

ljarah assets

Rental from ljarah arrangements are recognised in profit and loss account on accrual basis as
and when rentals become due. Costs including depreciation, incurred in earning the ljarah income
are recognised as expense. Initial direct costs incurred specifically to earn revenues from ljarah
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. Assets leased out are
depreciated over the period of lease term on a straight line basis and at the end of the ljarah term
the leased assets are transferred to the lessee.
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. These are amortised using the straight line method reflecting the pattern in which
the economic benefits of the asset are consumed by the Company as mentioned in note 18.

Investment property

Property, comprising land or a building or part thereof, held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both are classified as investment property. These are not held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. The Company's business model i.e.
the Company'’s intentions regarding the use of a property is the primary criterion for classification
as an investment property.

Investment property is initially measured at cost (including the transaction costs). However when
an owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an investment property because its
use has changed, the transfer to the investment property is at fair value on the date of transfer
and any balance of surplus on the revaluation of the related assets, on the date of such a transfer
continues to be maintained in the surplus account on revaluation of property, plant and equipments.
Upon disposal, any surplus previously recorded in the revaluation surplus account is directly
transferred to retained earnings and the transfer is not made through the profit and loss account.
However any gain or loss on disposal of investment property (calculated as the difference between
the net proceeds from disposal and the carrying amount of the item) is recognised in the profit
and loss account.

The transfer to investment property is made when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by the end of owner occupation. In case of a dual purpose properties, the same is
classified as investment property, only if the portion could be sold or leased out separately under
finance lease.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the Company measures the investment property at fair value
at each reporting date and any subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in the profit and
loss account (i.e. in cases where the owner occupied property carried at fair value becomes an
investment property, the fair value gain to be recognised in the profit and loss account would be
the difference between the fair value at the time of initial classification as investment property
and fair value at the time of subsequent remeasurement). The revaluations of investment properties
are carried out by independent professionally qualified valuers on the basis of active market
price.

Other receivables

Other receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate made for doubtful
receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at the year end. Balances considered
bad and irrecoverable are written off when considered irrecoverable.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each statement
of financial position date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation
Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after
taking into account tax credits and rebates available, if any. The charge for current taxation also
includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessments
framed / finalised during the year.
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Taxable income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions
of the tax laws, whereby, lease rentals received and receivable are deemed to be the income
of the Company.

Provision for taxation is thus based on taxable income determined in accordance with the
requirements of such laws, and is made at the current rates of taxation in the Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001.

Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised, using the statement of financial position liability method, on all
temporary differences arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amount. Deferred tax is calculated using the rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the differences reverse based on the tax rates that have been enacted at the statement of financial
position date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, whereas deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognised
only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised. In addition, the
Company also recognises deferred tax liability on the surplus on revaluation of tangible fixed
assets which is adjusted against the related surplus in accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard 12 (IAS 12), 'Income Taxes'.

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment

Any revaluation increase arising on the revaluation of land, buildings, leasehold improvements
and plant and machinery is recognised in other comprehensive income and presented as a
separate component of equity as “Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment”,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease for the same asset previously
recognised in profit or loss, in which case the increase is credited to profit or loss to the extent
of the decrease previously charged. Any decrease in carrying amount arising on the revaluation
of land, buildings, leasehold improvements and plant and machinery is charged to profit or loss
to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, held in the surplus on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.

The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders. The
surplus on revaluation to the extent of incremental depreciation charged (net of deferred tax) is
transferred to unappropriated profit.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
carried at amortised cost.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings are recorded at the proceeds received. Finance cost are accounted for
on accrual basis and are shown as interest and mark-up accrued to the extent of the amount
remaining unpaid.

Short term borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the statement of financial
position date.

Staff retirement benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Company operates an approved defined contributory provident fund for all its permanent
employees. Monthly contributions are made to the Fund equally by the Company and the
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employees in accordance with the rules of the Fund. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they become due. Staff retirement benefits are payable to employees on
completion of the prescribed qualifying period of service under the scheme.

Employees' compensated absences

The Company accounts for the liability in respect of employees' compensated absences in the
year in which these are earned. Provision to cover the obligations under the scheme is made
based on the current leave entitlements of the employees and by using the current salary level
of the employees.

Currency translation

Foreign currency transactions

Items included in financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Company operates.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Pakistani Rupees at the foreign exchange
rates prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange approximating those prevailing on
the statement of financial position date. Exchange differences are taken to the profit and loss
account.

Revenue recognition

Finance lease income

The Company follows the finance lease method in accounting for the recognition of lease income.
Under this method, the unearned lease income i.e. the excess of gross lease rentals and the
estimated residual value over the cost of the leased assets is deferred and taken to income over
the term of the lease contract, so as to produce a systematic return on the net investment in
finance lease. Unrealised lease income is held in suspense account, where necessary, in
accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations.

Documentation charges, late payment charges and processing fee are taken to income when
realised.

Rental income from ljarah

In accordance with the requirements of IFAS 2 - ljarah, rental from ljarah arrangements are
recognised in profit and loss account on accrual basis as and when rentals become due.

Return on investments

Mark-up income on debt securities is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective
yield on instruments and return on equity securities is accounted for on accrual basis.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the Company's right to receive dividend
is established.

Interest income

Interest income on bank deposits is recognised on time proportion basis using the effective
interest method.
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Gain or losses on sale of investments

Capital gain or losses arising on sale of investments are taken to income in the period in which
they arise.

Profit on Diminishing Musharaka

Profit on Diminishing Musharaka arrangement is recognised under the effective profit rate method
based on the outstanding amount.

5.20 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its shareholders. Basic
EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS
is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares, if any.

5.21 Dividend distribution and transfer between reserves

Dividend distribution (including stock dividend) to the Company's shareholders and transfer
between reserves, except appropriations which are required under law, are recognised in the
financial statements in the period in which such dividends are declared or such transfers between
reserves are made.

5.22 Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses including revenues and expenses that relate
to transactions with any of the Company’s other components. All operating segments’ results are
reviewed regularly by the Company’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about
resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete
financial information is available.

The Company has two primary business segments, namely, conventional leasing and Islamic
finance operations. Islamic finance operations comprise of ljarah and Diminishing Musharaka
transactions.

Financing, investment, revenue, expenses and income taxes are managed on an overall basis
and are therefore, not allocated to any segment.

Assets, liabilities and capital expenditures that are directly attributable to segments have been
assigned to them. Those assets and liabilities, which cannot be allocated to a particular segment
on a reasonable basis, are reported as unallocated corporate assets and liabilities.

5.23 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities, income and expenses. It also requires management to exercise judgment in application
of the Company's accounting policies. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making judgment about the carrying value
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources, actual results may differ
from those estimates. These estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial
statements or where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

i) Classification and valuation of investments (notes 5.1.1 , 8 and 13).
i) Provision for current and deferred taxation (notes 5.12, 26 and 36).
iii) Recognition and measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities (note 5.12.2, 26 and
iv) ?C):Elsgésification and provision of net investment in finance lease (notes 5.4, 5.5 and 11).
V) Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of property, plant and

equipment (note 5.6 and 17).

Vi) Determination and measurement of useful life and residual value of intangible assets
(note 5.8 and 18).

Vi) Measurement of investment property carried at revalued amount. (note 5.9 and 16).

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND
PERFORMANCE

During the year, the total lease disbursements made by the Company amounted to Rs. 778.86
million.

During the year, the Company has arranged additional long-term loan from commercial bank
amounting to Rs. 50 million (refer note 23).

During the year, the Company has arranged additional short-term running finance facilities from
commercial banks having sanctioned limit of Rs. 150 million (refer note 22).

The Company declared final dividend of 12.5% (Rs. 1.25 per share) for the year ended June
2018, amounting to Rs. 31.712 million.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees -----------
Cash in hand 49,241 68,277
Balance with banks:
- in current accounts 7.1 12,326,630 12,864,928
- in saving accounts 7.2 4,034,190 2,667,621
16,410,061 15,600,826

This amount includes Rs. 0.885 million (2018: Rs.1.327 million) which represents balance of
bank account(s) maintained with Islamic bank(s) by the Company. The balance in current accounts
does not carry any mark-up or interest.

These carry mark-up rate of 10.25% per annum (2018: 5% to 6.7% per annum).
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% Pak-Gulf Leasing NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Companv Limited FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Note 2019 2018
SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS ... RUPEES =---nnnn=-
At fair value through other comprehensive
income (June 30, 2018: available for sale)
Cost
54,300 units of National Investment (Unit) Trust
(2018: 54,300) 1,194,200 1,194,200
Revaluation surplus
As at July 01 2,815,855 3,352,882
Deficit for the year (1,056,135) (537,027)
As at June 30 1,759,720 2,815,855
2,953,920 4,010,055
At amortised cost
(June 30, 2018: held to maturity)
Government Securities
- Market Treasury Bills 8.1 54,479,241 36,376,507
57,433,161 40,386,562

These Market Treasury Bills (MTB) carries interest rate of 11.2% per annum (2018: 6.18% to
6.24% per annum) and will mature on August 01, 2019. The market value of investment in MTB
as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs. 54.905 million (2018: Rs. 36.487 million).

OTHER RECEIVABLES - NET

Lease receivable held under litigation 9.1 54,583,115 27,515,285
Insurance premium and other receivable 9.2 6,368,043 6,425,290
60,951,158 33,940,575

Provision against lease receivable held under

litigation 9.3 (29,198,603) (24,533,585)
Mark-up held in suspense against lease

receivable held under litigation (4,486,173) (2,728,847)
Provision against insurance premium and

other receivable 9.4 (1,430,692) (1,430,692)

25,835,690 5,247,451

This includes net investment in finance lease terminated by the Company and where litigation has
commenced.

This includes insurance premium receivable from lessees for leased assets insured on their behalf
by the Company. These amounts are recovered either during the lease period or on termination /
maturity of the lease contracts.

Movement of provision against lease
receivable held under litigation

Balance as at July 01 24,533,585 25,600,250
Charge for the year 5,131,828 -
Reversal for the year (213,333) (1,066,665)
Write off for the year (253,477) -
Balance as at June 30 29,198,603 24,533,585
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Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees ----=-=----
9.4 Movement of provision against
insurance premium and other receivable
Balance as at July 01 1,430,692 1,430,692
Charge for the year - -
Balance as at June 30 1,430,692 1,430,692
10. ADVANCE TO EMPLOYEES
Advance to employees 10.1 57,490 225633

10.1 This amount represents advance given by the Company to its employees against their salary
in accordance with the Company's Human Resource policy.

11. NET INVESTMENT IN FINANCE LEASE
(Secured)
Net investment in finance lease 11.1 2,363,312,394  2,248,597,149
Current portion shown under current assets ~ 11.1 (r11,771,188) _(753,478,039)

1,651,541,206  1,495,119,110

11.1 Net investment in finance lease

2019 2018
Later than Later than
Not later than one year and Latgr than Not later than one year and Late.r than
. five Total . five Total
one year less than five one year less than five
years years years years
-------------------------------------------- RUpPEES=m=mmemmecmcc e e eeec e
Minimum lease payments 784,856,063 1,134,886,052 - 1,919,742,115 700,151,725 1,013,042,060 35,142,837 1,748,336,622
Add: Residual value of leased
assets (note 11,2) 96,789,816 691,163,737 - 787,953,553 200,055,615 479,948,988 107,282,305 787,286,908
Gross investment in finance
lease 881,645,879 1,826,049,789 - 2,707,695,668 900,207,340 1,492,991,048 142,425,142 2,535,623,530
Unearned lease income (165,129,167) || (174,508,583) - (339,637,750) | | (143,991,962)| | (136,438,452) (3,858,628) || (284,289,042)
Mark-up held in suspense (2,117,482) (2,117,482) (1,416,470) - - (1,416,470)
(167,246,649) (174,508,583) - (341,755,232)  (145,408,432) (136,438,452) (3,858,628) (285,705,512)
714,399,230 1,651,541,206 - 2,365,940,436 754,798,908 1,356,552,596 138,566,514 2,249,918,018
Provision for potential lease
losses (note 11.3) (2,628,042) - - (2,628,042) (1,320,869) - - (1,320,869)
Net investment in finance lease 711,771,188 1,651,541,206 - 2,363,312,394 753,478,039 1,356,552,596 138,566,514 2,248,597,149

In certain leases, the Company has security, in addition to leased assets, in the form of
mortgages / corporate / personal guarantees of associated companies / directors of lessees.

11.2 These represent interest free security deposits received against lease contracts and are
refundable / adjustable at the expiry / termination of the respective leases. The amount is
net of security deposit held against matured leases amounting to Rs. 235.038 million (2018:
Rs. 123.892 million).
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L . Note 2019 2018
Provision for potential lease losses
----------- Rupees -----------
Balance as at July 01 1,320,869 878,049
Charge for the year 7,476,930 3,101,747
Reversal for the year (6,169,757) (2,658,927)
Balance as at June 30 2,628,042 1,320,869

The net investment in finance lease portfolio includes Rs. 19.120 million (2018: Rs. 19.132 million)
which has been placed under non-performing status.

The Company has entered into various lease agreements for periods ranging from one to seven
years (2018: one to seven years). Security deposits ranging from 2% to 89% (2018: 2.06% to
89% ) are obtained at the time of entering into the lease arrangement. The rate of return implicit
in the leases ranges from 9.31% to 31.46% per annum (2018: 9.93% to 31.46% per annum).

TAXATION - NET

Balance as at July 01 5,980,061 7,475,847
Advance tax paid 1,121,202 795,546
Charge for the year 36 (2,836,431) (2,291,332)
Balance as at June 30 4,264,832 5,980,061

LONG-TERM INVESTMENT

At amortised cost (June 30, 2018: held to maturity)
Government Securities

Pakistan Investment Bonds 6,031,925 22,169,186
Current portion shown under current assets (6,031,925) (16,045,277)
- 6,123,909

As per the requirements of Regulation 14 (4) (i) of the NBFC Regulations, the Company is required
to invest at least 15% of its outstanding funds raised through issue of Certificates of Investments
in the Government Securities. As at June 30, 2019, the Company had 15.39% of its funds raised
through Certificates of Investments invested in Pakistan Investment Bonds (PIBs) and Market
Treasury Bills (refer note 8).

PIBs carry interest rates ranging from 9.25% to 11.50% per annum (2018: 9.25% to 11.50% per
annum) and have maturity dates ranging from July 17, 2019 to March 26, 2020. The market value
of investment in PIBs as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs. 5.895 million (2018: Rs. 22.263
million).

DIMINISHING MUSHARAKA RECEIVABLE

Considered good - 19,064,000
Considered doubtful 18,788,999 -
18,788,999 19,064,000
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (9,394,500) -
14.2 9,394,499 19,064,000

The expected profit receivable on these arrangements ranges from 12.45% to 20% per annum
(2018: 12.45% to 20%). These arrangements are secured by way of right on assets given under
the diminishing musharaka. The arrangements are further secured by personal guarantees and
hypothecation charge on assets of the customer. These finances are receivable on various dates
up to July 15, 2022. During the year, the Company filed litigation for claim of receivable due under
the diminishing musharaka arrangement from the client.
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14.1 Aging of musharaka finances

2019 2018
Balance Provisioning Balance Provisioning
outstanding held outstanding held
------------ (Rupees) ---cmeemme-
OAEM (Other Assets
Especially Mentioned) - - 19,064,000 -
Substandard - - - -
Doubtful 18,788,999 9,394,500 - -
Loss - - - -
18,788,999 9,394,500 19,064,000 -
Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees ------uu---

14.2 Current portion of musharaka finances

Diminishing musharaka receivable 9,394,499 19,064,000
Less: Non current portion shown under current assets (9,394,499) (14,389,633)
- 4,674,337
15 LONG-TERM DEPOSITS
Long-term deposits 15.1 112,500 300,460

15.1 This amount included Rs. 0.188 million given by the Company as security deposit to First Habib
Modaraba under ljarah arrangement to obtain the ljarah asset. These deposits do not carry any
markup or interest. During the year, this amount was transferred to owned fixed assets on the
completion of the ljarah term.

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTY
Opening balance 146,718,000 138,996,000
Fair value adjustment 7,722,000 7,722,000

154,440,000 146,718,000

16.1 The Company has rented out its office premises and decided to classify its owner occupied
property as investment property as of December 31, 2016 that will be carried at fair value model
in accordance with IAS 40 "Investment Property".

16.2 The carrying value of investment property is the fair value of the property as determined by
approved independent valuer M/s. Akbani and Javed Associates as on June 29, 2019 on the
basis of market value. Fair value was determined having regard to recent market transactions
for similar properties in the same location and condition as the Company's investment property.

16.3 Fair value measurement
Fair value measurement of investment property is based on the valuations carried out by an
independent valuer M/s. Akbani and Javed Associates as on June 29, 2019 on the basis of market
value.

Fair value measurement of revalued premises is based on assumptions considered to be level
2 inputs.
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16.4 Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 fair values - Investment property

Fair value of investment property has been derived using a sales comparison approach. The
valuation is considered on the basis of location, needs of the buyer, the overall prevailing market
situation and other consideration associated with such type of property. The most significant input
in this valuation approach is price / rate per square foot in particular locality. This valuation is
considered to be level 2 in fair value hierarchy due to significant observable inputs used in the
valuation.

16.5 Forced sales value - Investment property
Forced sales value of investment property as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs. 131.274 million.
16.6 Location and area - Investment property

The investment property is located at Office No. 125, 126 and 127, 1st Floor, The Forum, Plot
No. G-20, Block 9, Clifton, Karachi and its total covered area is 5148 sq.ft.

Note 2019 2018
17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  ceeaeaaas RUpPEES ----=====--
Fixed assets - own use 17.1 7,046,592 8,679,844
Fixed assets - ljarah finance 17.2 12,573,647 30,432,728

19,620,239 39,112,572

17.1 Fixed Assets - own use

Leasehold Furniture Office Vehicles Computer
Description improvements and equipment equipment Total
fittings

_______________ RUPEES = - m e e e e e e - - = -
Year ended June 30, 2019
Net carrying value basis
Opening net book value (NBV) 139,324 1,442,620 1,850,590 4,741,486 505,824 8,679,844
Additions - - 45,000 187,960 107,712 340,672
Disposals (NBV) - - - - - -
Depreciation charge (139,324) (181,492) (669,168) (671,558) (312,382)  (1,973,924)

Closing net book value 1,261,128 1,226,422 4,257,888 301,154 7,046,592

R —C U0 E U SRS LU L S—. LA A L2020 R S s S Ao 8 0 A AL

Gross carrying value basis

Cost 1,168,197 3,442,403 3,858,158 11,260,933 4,953,404 24,683,095
Accumulated depreciation (1,168,197)  (2,181,275) (2,631,736) (7,003,045) (4,652,250) (17,636,503)
Net book value - 1,261,128 1,226,422 4,257,888 301,154 7,046,592
Year ended June 30, 2018

Net carrying value basis

Opening net book value (NBV) 305,061 830,972 2,318,748 1,444,845 687,278 5,586,904
Additions - 790,360 215,740 4,197,238 351,321 5,554,659
Disposals (NBV) - - - - - -
Depreciation charge (165,737) (178,712) (683,898) (900,597)  (532,775) (2,461,719)
Closing net book value 139,324 1,442,620 1,850,590 4,741,486 505,824 8,679,844
Cost 1,168,197 3,442,403 3,813,158 11,072,973 4,845,692 24,342,423
Accumulated depreciation (1,028,873)  (1,999,783) (1,962,568) (6,331,487) (4,339,868) (15,662,579)
Net book value 139,324 1,442,620 1,850,590 4,741,486 505,824 8,679,844
Depreciation rate % per annum 33.33 10 20 20 33.33
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17.2 Fixed assets - ljarah finance
Description Vehicles Machinery Total
------- (Rupees) - ------

Year ended June 30, 2019
Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 400,785 30,031,943 30,432,728
Additions during the year - - -
Disposal / transfer during the year (NBV) - (8) (8)
Depreciation charge (400,785) (17,458,288) (17,859,073)
Closing net book value - 12,573,647 12,573,647
Gross carrying value basis

Cost 2,186,000 114,233,662 116,419,662

Accumulated depreciation (2,186,000) (101,660,015)  (103,846,015)
Net book value - 12,573,647 12,573,647

Year ended June 30, 2018

Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 837,976 48,526,340 49,364,316
Additions during the year - - -
Disposal during the year (NBV) - - -
Depreciation charge (437,191) (18,494,397) (18,931,588)

Closing net book value 400,785 30,031,943 30,432,728
Gross carrying value basis

Cost 2,186,000 115,663,662 117,849,662
Accumulated depreciation (1,785,215) (85,631,719) (87,416,934)
Net book value 400,785 30,031,943 30,432,728
Depreciation rate % per annum 20 to 33.33 20to 50

17.3 The details of property, plant and equipment - own use / ijarah finance disposed off during the
year is as follow:

Original Accumulated Written Sale Gain Mode of Particulars
Cost depriciation down value proceeds on disposal disposal of buyer
2019 tTTmmmmmmmmmmmmemmmsmeess Rupees """"""""""""""""
Own Use .
187,960 187,960 - 8,000 8,000 Scrapsale Technic
Business

ljarah finance

1,430,000 1,429,992 8 - (8) . End of System
ljarah term Lessee

Total - 2019 1,617,960 1,617,952 8 8,000 7,992

Total - 2018 - - - - -

17.4 The vehicle under the ljarah arrangement was recorded as owned asset at the value of security
deposit on the completion of the ljarah term. During the ljarah term the cost of asset acquired
under ljarah arrangements amounts to Rs. 1.88 million was not taken as part of the assets of

175 the Company in accordance with the requirements to IFAS 2.

The cost of fully depreciated assets which are still in use as at June 30, 2019 is Rs. 14.11 million
and written down value is Rs. 0.93 million (2018: Rs. 12.66 million and written down value is Rs.
0.93 million).
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Note 2019 2018
18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS e RUp@es -------oo--

Intangible assets 18.1 1,567,260 1,610,818
18.1 Intangible assets
9 Computer Soft\(/jvare ot
- Software under
Description development
------- (Rupees) - -=-----

Year ended June 30, 2019
Net carrying value basis
Opening book value 170,601 1,440,217 1,610,818
Additions during the year - - -
Disposal (NBV) -
Amortisation charge (43,558)

(4-3,558)

Closing net book value 127,043 1,440,217 1,567,260
Gross carrying value basis

Cost 966,798 1,440,217 2,407,015
Accumulated amortisation (839,755) - (839,755)
Net book value 127,043 1,440,217 1,567,260

Year ended June 30, 2018

Net carrying value basis

Opening book value 214,158 1,440,217 1,654,375
Additions during the year - - -
Disposal (NBV) -
Amortisation charge (43,557) - (43,557)

Closing net book value 170,601 1,440,217 1,610,818
Gross carrying value basis
Cost 966,798 1,440,217 2,407,015
Accumulated amortisation (796.197) - (796.197)
Net book value 170,601 1,440,217 1,610,818
Amortisation rate % per annum 20 -
Note 2019 2018
19. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
----------- Rupees -----------
Accrued liabilities 3,402,695 7,279,822
Sundry creditors - Lease 24,231,560 17,058,796
Security deposit 2,054,052 2,054,052
Unearned rental income 5,012,243 5,385,046
Payable to provident fund - 45,030
Other liabilities 4,145,541 3,207,146
38,846,091 35,029,892

20. ACCRUED MARKUP
Accrued mark-up on:

Certificates of investment 9,260,772 10,633,667
Short term borrowings 12,670,660 5,189,718
Long-term loan 925,769 212,197

22,857,201 16,035,582
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Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees -----------
21. CERTIFICATES OF INVESTMENT

Opening balance 378,127,544 404,130,173
Certificates issued during the year 21.1 1,195,272,253 418,127,532

Rolled over during the year (1,144,111,738) (384,880,161)
Payments made during the year (36,975,384) (59,250,000)

Closing balance 392,312,675 378,127,544

211 These represent certificates of investment issued by the Company for periods ranging from 6
to 36 months (2018: 6 to 36 months) and carry mark-up rates ranging from 10.75% to 12.25%
per annum (2018: 7.5% to 8.5% per annum).

21.2 Current maturity of Certificates of Investment
Certificates of Investment 392,312,675 378,127,544
Current portion shown under liabilities (18,375,094) (173,593,636)
373,937,581 204,533,908
22. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured
Running finances under mark-up arrangements 22.1 414,340,936 387,568,906

221 The Company has availed short-term running finance facilities from various commercial banks
having sanctioned limit amounting to Rs. 550 million (2018: Rs. 430 million). The facilities carry
mark-up at the rate ranging from 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% per annum to 3 months KIBOR
plus 2.5% per annum. The facilities are secured by hypothecation charge over leased assets
and lease rentals receivable.

23. LONG-TERM LOAN
(Secured)
Long-term loan - secured 23.1 49,999,996 20,833,331
Current portion shown under current liabilities 23.1 (20,833,331) (16,666,668)

29,166,665 4,166,663

23.1 The Company has arranged long term finance facilities from a commercial bank amounting to
Rs. 100 million (2018: Rs. 50 million). The facilities has been obtained for a tenure of three years
which is repayable in quarterly instalments. The maturity date of the facilities range between
August 16, 2019 to February 06, 2021. The facilities carry mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR
plus 1.5% per annum and is secured by hypothecation charge over specific leased assets and
lease rentals receivable.

24. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Long-term deposits 24.1 787,953,553 787,286,908
Current portion shown under current liabilities  24.1 (96,789,816) (200,055,615)
691,163,737 587,231,293

24.1 These represent interest free security deposits received against lease contracts and are refundable
/ adjustable at the expiry / termination of the respective leases.

25. ADVANCE RENTAL AGAINST IJARAH LEASING

Advance rental against ljarah leasing 3,185,963 8,736,588
Current portion shown under current liabilities (2,552,045) (5,557,912)
633,918 3,178,676
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Company Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees -----------
DEFERRED TAXATION - Net
Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 36,966,506 36,966,506
Unrealised gain on revaluation of investment property 5,971,680 3,732,300
Investment in finance lease and tax book value of assets
given on finance lease 198,506,251 189,399,060
Long-term investments 9.258 34.564
241,453,695 230,132,430
Deductible temporary difference arising in respect of:
Carried forward tax losses (26,560,697) (28,472,311)
Provision against potential lease losses (762,132) (383,052)
Provision against diminishing musharaka receivable (2,724,405) -
Provision against other receivable (8,882,496) (7,529,640)
Accelerated tax depreciation (10,297,374) (5,623,110)
Provision for leave encashment (573,414) (441,924)
(49,800,518) (42,450,037)
191,653,177 187,682,393
Movement in temporary differences is as follows:
Balance Recognised Recognised Balance
as at in profit and in equity as at
July 1, 2018 loss account June 30, 2019
..................... Rupees =========smcemcnnnannn
Surplus on revaluation of
property, plant & equipment 36,966,506 - 36,966,506
Unrealised gain on revaluation of
investment property 3,732,300 2,239,380 -
Excess of accounting WDV 5,971,680
over Tax WDV (5,623,110) (4,674,264) (10,297,374)
Long-term investments 34,564 (25,306) 9,258
Investment in finance lease
and tax book value of assets
given on finance lease 189,399,060 9,107,191 - 198,506,251
Carried forward tax losses (28,472,311) 1,911,614 - (26,560,697)
Provision against potential
lease losses (383,052)  (379,080) - (762,132)
Provision against diminishing
musharaka receivable - (2,724,405) (2,724,405)
Provision against other
receivable (7,529,640) (1,352,856) (8,882,496)
Provision for leave encashment (441,924) (131,490) - (573.414)
187,682,393 3,970,784 - 191.653.177
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SHARE CAPITAL
2019 2018
""" Number of shares ===
Authorised capital
50,000,000 50,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 500,000,000 500,000,000

Issued, Subscribed and
paid-up share capital

10,000,000 10,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each

Note 2019 2018

fully paid in cash 100,000,000 100,000,000

2,369,800 2,369,800 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 23,698,000 23,698,000

13,000,000 13,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each
issued as fully paid Right shares 130,000,000 130,000,000

25,369,800 25,369,800 253,698,000 253,698,000

As at June 30, 2019, 10,617,438 shares (2018: 10,646,529 shares) of the Company were
held by related parties.

RESERVES

Capital reserve
Statutory reserve 28.1 105,910,520 93,034,892
Reserve for issue of bonus shares 4,402,000 4,402,000

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant
and equipment - net of deferred tax 28.2 & 29 90,504,204 90,504,204
Surplus on revaluation of investments
classified as fair value through other
comprehensive income 8&28.2 1,759,720 2,815,855
202,576,444 190,756,951

Revenue reserve
Unappropriated profit 302,371,124 282,580,862
504,947,568 473,337,813

In accordance with the requirements of the NBFC Regulations, an amount of not less than
20 percent of after tax profits shall be transferred to statutory reserve till such time when
the reserve equals the amount of paid-up capital, and thereafter a sum of not less than 5
percent shall be transferred. Consequently, during the current year the Company has
transferred an amount of Rs. 12.876 million (2018: Rs. 13.874 million) to its statutory
reserve.

As per explanation to the Rule 2 (1) (xix) of the NBFC Rules, surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment and surplus on revaluation of investments classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income shall not be included in equity, therefore, the
amount of equity shown in note 1.2 to these financial statements does not include the said
surplus.
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Pak-Gulf Leasing NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF Note 2019 2018
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 77 upees
- net of deferred tax
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold premises as at July 1 127,470,710 127,470,710
Surplus on revaluation conducted during the year - -
Transferred to unappropriated profit in respect of incremental
depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred tax - -
Related deferred tax liability of incremental depreciation
charged during the year - -
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed asset as at June 30 127,470,710 127,470,710
Related deferred tax liability at the beginning of the year 36,966,506 38,241,214
Related deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation
conducted during the year - -
Related to incremental depreciation charged during the year - -
Effect of change in tax rate - (1,274,708)
36,966,506 36,966,506
28.2 90,504,204 90,504,204

This represents net surplus on revaluation of Company's leasehold premises held till the
date it was reclassified into Investment Property, i.e., December 31, 2016 which remains
undepreciated as at June 30, 2019 (2018: Rs. 127.471 million). As of December 31, 2016
the Company decided to classify its owner occupied property as investment property.

The surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve, and is
not available for distribution to the shareholders in accordance with section 241 of the
Companies Act, 2017.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
Contingencies

The Alternate Corporate Tax charge for the Tax Year 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015 and
2014 amounted to Rs. 12.101 million, Rs. 13.702 million, Rs. 11.135 million,
Rs. 8.702 million, Rs. 9.233 million and Rs. 8.100 million, respectively which is
Rs. 9.265 million, Rs. 11.411 million, Rs. 9.464 million, Rs. 7.127 million, Rs. 8.005 million
and Rs. 7.140 million in excess of the minimum tax payable at Rs. 2.836 million,
Rs. 2.291 million, Rs. 1.671 million, Rs. 1.575 million, Rs. 1.228 million and
Rs. 0.960 million, respectively under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
(Ordinance).

The Company had filed a Civil Suit against the levy and payment of Alternate Corporate Tax
(ACT) on its accounting income in the Honorable High Court of Sindh. On December 29, 2014
the Honorable Court had issued an order restraining the Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) from
taking any coercive action against the Company. Later on, on the basis of directions given by
the Hon’ble Supreme Court of Pakistan vide its order dated June 27, 2018 in another case to the
effect that civil suits shall only be entertained by the High Courts if 50% of the tax calculated by
the tax authorities is deposited upfront by the filers of the civil suit, management was advised
by its legal advisor to withdraw the civil suit and to file a constituition petition instead as and when
a notice for the recovery of the tax demand is received from the FBR. Accepting the legal advice
of the legal advisor the Company has withdrawn the civil suit and is waiting to be served by a
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recovery notice by the FBR. As soon as the notice is received the management will file a
Constitutional Petition in the Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Company has a strong case
and since the management is confident that it will get the desired relief from the Honorable High
Court of Sindh therefore no provisioning for the disputed tax demand has been made by it in its
accounts and only payment for minimum tax has been provided for.

On June 15, 2016, Order-in-original No.551 of 2016 was passed by the Assistant Commissioner
of Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) under section 23, 43(2)(3)(6d) of the Sindh Sales Tax on Services
Act, 2011(the Act) whereby sales tax demand of Rs. 3.199 million was created against the
Company for Tax Years 2012 to 2015. This demand included sum of Rs. 2.353 million being
sales tax charged on income from Gross ljarah operations. An appeal was filed against the said
Order before the Commissioner (Appeals) of the SRB by the Company under section 57 of the
Act which was not allowed by the Commissioner (Appeals) vide his Order-in-Appeal No. 20 of
2017 dated March 01, 2017. An appeal against the order of Assistant Commissioner of SRB and
Order-in-Appeal of Commissioner (Appeals) was also filed by the Company in the Appellate
Tribunal (AT) of SRB under section 61 of the Act which has also been dismissed by the AT of
SRB vide its Order in Appeal No. AT-18/2017 dated April 30, 2019 on the ground that ljarah
transactions being undertaken by the Company are similar to an operating lease arrangement
in which sales tax is chargeable on Gross ljarah rental amount. The Company has filed a reference
against the order of the AT of SRB in the Honorable High Court of Sindh and on June 10, 2019
has been granted a stay against the recovery of the disputed tax demand by the SRB.

No payment against the demand created under the Order has been made by the Company. The
Company has a strong case and the mangement is confident that the outcome of the appeal will
be in the Company'’s favor. Accordingly, no provision has been recorded in respect of the matter.

Commitments RUPEES ==rrsmmesnnn

Commitments for finance lease 205,434,521 122,399,900

e e e

Contractual rentals receivable on ljarah contracts
This represents the rentals receivable by the Company in respect of ljarah assets.

2019
Due within 1 |Due after 1 year Total
year but within
5 years
(Rupees)
Rentals receivable in future 11,173,320 2,538,830 13,712,150
2018
Due within 1 |Due after 1 year Total
year but within
5 years
(Rupees)
Rentals receivable in future 16,096,084 13,712,150 29,808,234
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30.2.3 Contractual rentals receivable on Diminishing Musharaka contracts

This represents the rentals receivable by the Company in respect of Diminishing Musharaka

contracts.

Rentals receivable in future

Rentals receivable in future

30.2.4 ljarah rentals payable

2019
Due within 1| Due after 1 year Total
year but within
5 years
(Rupees)
6,285,557 10,883,630 17,169,187
2018
Due within 1 |Due after 1 year Total
year but within
5 years
(Rupees)
6,786,306 17,169,187 23,955,493

This represents the ljarah rentals payable by the Company in respect of asset acquired

under ljarah arrangement.

Future ljarah rentals payable

Future ljarah rentals payable

31.

Finance Income

Gain on lease termination

Late payment charges

Processing fee

Documentation charges

Income from ljarah operations
Income from Diminishing Musharaka

INCOME FROM FINANCING OPERATIONS

2019
Due within 1 |Due after 1 year Total
year but within
5 years
(Rupees)
2018
Due within 1 |Due after 1 year Total
year but within
5 years
(Rupees)
108,884 - 108,884
Note 2019 2018
----------- Rupees --=---=----
189,498,259 145,792,595
2,644,071 1,847,035
1,558,497 823,025
2,630,431 2,683,000
889,200 1,047,600
31.1 21,642,113 23,420,660
2,540,748
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Note 2019 2018
31.1 Income from ljarah operations RUpEes --=--nn=---
ljarah rental income 31.1.1 16,091,488 17,500,655
Advance rental amortisation 5,550,625 5,864,522
Others - 55,483
21,642,113 23,420,660

31.1.1 ljarah rental income comprises of principal and profit component.

32. RETURN ON INVESTMENTS
Profit on bank accounts 32.1 2,007,810 526,690
Income from Pakistan Investment Bonds 606,288 2,455,807
Income from Market Treasury Bills 4,141,506 2,107,594
Dividend income 32.2 126,520

6,882,124 5,090,091

32.1 This amount includes Rs. 1,189 (2018: Rs. 1,178) which represents profit on bank account(s)
maintained with Islamic bank(s) by the Company.

32.2 This amount represents dividend income earned during the year on investment in National
Investment Unit Trust.

33. OTHER INCOME
Gain on disposal of property, plant & equipment  17.3 7,992 -
Rental income 10,397,279 9,351,641
Unrealised gain on revaluation
of investment property 7,722,000 7,722,000
Others 33.1 20,081 61,800

18,147,352 17,135,441

33.1 This amount includes commitment fees, duplicate transfer letter charges and miscellaneous
income.
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Note 2019 2018
34. ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES ~  ==========- Rupees -----------

Directors' fee 38 1,919,996 1,839,996
Salaries, allowances and benefits 34.1 & 34.2 35,606,724 29,692,616
Depreciation 17.1 & 17.2 19,832,997 21,393,307
Amortisation 18 43,558 43,557
Office utilities 1,734,183 1,553,505
Legal and professional charges 5,513,926 4,159,193
Auditors' remuneration 34.4 525,000 525,000
Postage, subscription, printing and stationary 1,754,624 2,188,221
Vehicle running and maintenance 2,196,805 1,730,413
Office repair and general maintenance 842,252 963,866
Workers' Welfare Fund 1,452,000 1,645,118
Insurance 34.5 1,335,245 915,908
Advertisement 291,600 185,600
Travelling and conveyance 269,888 255,722
Rent on ljarah finance 90,050 653,304
Rent expense 4,209,524 3,795,514
Miscellaneous 1,215,007 1,043,286

78,833,379 72,584,126

34.1 This includes salary of Rs. 6.249 million (2018: Rs. 5.868 million) paid to the Chief
Executive Officer and ex-Executive Director.

34.2 Salaries and benefits include Rs. 1.572 million (2018: Rs. 1.173 million) in respect of
staff provident fund.

34.3 The total number of employees at as June 30, 2019 is 40 (2018: 35) and the average
number of employees during the year was 38 (2018: 34).

34.4 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee 335,000 335,000

Review report on the statement of compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance 50,000 50,000
Half yearly review fee 115,000 115,000
Out of pocket expenses 25,000 25,000
525,000 525,000

34.5 The Company has obtained insurance coverage from EFU General Insurance Company Limited
rated "AA+" by Pakistan Credit Rating Agency (an agency registered with the Commission)
against any losses that may be incurred as a result of employee's fraud or gross negligence. The
sum insured of the insurance policy is Rs. 2 Million (2018: Rs. 2 Million).

35. FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
- Short term borrowings 40,329,609 15,246,781
- Certificates of investment 33,925,707 30,120,520
- Long-term loan 3,616,393 2,249,690
Bank charges 140,754 65,260

78,012,463 47,682,251

76



Pak-Gulf Leasing ~NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Companv Limited FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019
Note 2019 2018

36. TAXATION e Rupees --=-==-==--
Current 2,836,431 2,291,332
Deferred 26.2 3,970,784 8,942,655

6,807,215 11,233,987

36.1 Numerical reconciliation between the average tax rate and the applicable tax rate has not
been presented as Company is subject to the provisions of taxation under Section 113 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

36.2 The returns of income have been filed upto and including Tax Year 2018 corresponding to
financial year ended June 30, 2018 under self assessment scheme. However, the return may
be selected for which an amendment within six years from the end of the respective Tax Year
and within five years from the end of financial year in which assessment order is issued or
treated to have been issued for that tax year to the Company respectively.

36.3 Comparison of tax provision against tax assessments
Tax Year Tax Tax

provision assessment
2018 2,291,332 2,291,332
2017 1,670,633 1,713,762
2016 1,574,547 1,531,508

37. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Profit after taxation attributable to 64.378.140 69.368.392
ordinary shareholders i) it
-------- Number of shares--------
Weighted average number of
outstanding ordinary shares 25,369,800 25,369,800
Rupees
Earning per share - basic and diluted 254 2.73

37.1 There were no convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 2019.

38. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, EXECUTIVE AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2019 2018
Chief Non Executive Executives Chief Non Executive Executives
Executive ED)i(re(;:cutg\r/se Director Executive %’I(ree%t‘g;’se director

Officer Officer

--------------------------------- RuUupees ====sseccecmcecccecnncccecccecccecenaaaa
Managerial

remuneration 1,858,068 1,919,996 2,111,748 4,535,754 1,695,903 1,839,996 2,028,144 2,398,012
Housing and utilites 1,021,937 - 1,257,468 2,650,662 932,747 - 1,211,486 1,318,891
Reimbursable expenses 114,297 181,239 246,152 376,193 93,011 113,606 405,965 423,975
Provident Fund contribution - - 124,554 - - _ 113232

2,994,302 2,101,235 3,615,368 7,687,163 2,721,661 1,953,602 3,645,595 4,254,110

Number of persons 1 7 1 3 1 7 1 2
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The executives of the Company are also entitled to free use of Company owned and maintained
vehicles.

The amount charged in the financial statements as the fee of directors for attending a Board
of Directors meeting was Rs. 40,000 per meeting.

The current and corresponding year figures include remunerations of Company’s Executives
whose basic salary exceeds twelve hundred thousand rupees in a financial year.

The executive director retired as director wef April 22, 2019, however his services as Executive
of the Company are still active. His entire remuneration for the year has been disclosed as
Executive director.

TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

The Company has related party relationships with the companies with common directorship,
directors of the Company, key management personnel and employee's contribution plan
(provident fund).

Contributions to the provident fund are made in accordance with the terms of employment.

Salaries and allowances of the key management personal are in accordance with the terms
of employment. Other transactions are at agreed terms.
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Nature of transaction

Certificates of investment
Issued during the year

Board of Directors

Close relatives(s) of Director(s)
Rolled over during the year

Board of Directors

Close relatives(s) of Director(s)

Repaid during the year
Board of Directors
Close relatives(s) of Director(s)

Financial Charges
Board of Directors
Close relatives(s) of Director(s)

Finance Lease
Rental received / adjusted
Board of Directors
Saira Industries (Private) Limited
& MACPAC Films Limited

Office rent
Rent paid during the year
Unibro House

Prepaid rent charged as expense
during the year
Unibro House

Gross dividend

Gross dividend Paid during the year

Board of Directors
Close relative(s) of Director(s)

Unibro Industries Limited

Mid-East Agencies (Private) Limited

Contribution to Staff Retirement
Benefit Plan
Contribution charge for the year

Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited -

Employees’ Provident Fund
Contribution paid for the year

Pak-Gulf Leasing Company Limited -

Employees’ Provident Fund

Relation with
the Company

Directorship

Descendant(s) of Director(s)

Directorship
Spouse(s) and Descendant(s)
of Directors

Directorship
Parent(s) and Descendant(s)
of Directors

Directorship
Parent(s), Spouse(s) and
Descendant(s) of Director(s)

Directorship
Associated undertaking
(Common Director)

Associated undertaking
(Common Director)

Associated undertaking
(Common Director)

Directorship

Spouse(s) and Descendant(s)
of Directors

Associated undertaking
(Common Director)
Associated undertaking
(Common Director)

Staff retirement
benefit plan

Staff retirement
benefit plan
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2019 2018
---------- Rupees ------cmuu---
8,000,000 -
724,840,415 264,086,299
409,258,509 108,738,163
11,491,840 57,500,000
2,145,119 -
21,188,177 17,566,731
10,578,457 8,473,057
- 568,326
18,509,033 1,860,404
3,587,045 3,260,950
3,764,915 3,395,700
9,730,931 5,838,559
9,136,444 5,481,867
1,874,731 1,124,839
1,608,743 965,245
1,571,812 1,173,246
1,616,842 1,128,216
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2019 2018
---------- Rupees ------cmuu---
Year ended balances
Certificates of investment 363,937,581 342,824,462
Accrued mark-up on
Certificates of investment 8,614,716 9,893,585

Net investment in finance lease 62,077,399 1,295,732
Security deposit (in respect of

finance lease) 11,150,000 1,320,000
Prepaid rent 1,304,380 1,482,250
Security deposit (in respect of

rented office premises) 245,000 245,000

The details of compensation paid to key management personnel are shown under the heading
of "Remuneration Of Chief Executive Officer, Executive And Non-Executive Directors And
Executives (note 38)". There are no transactions with key management personnel other than
under their terms of employment.

All transactions with related parties have been carried out on commercial terms and conditions.

PROVIDENT FUND DISCLOSURE

The Company operates approved funded contributory provident fund for both its management
and non-management employees. Details of net assets and investments of the fund is as follows:

2019 2018
(Un-audited) (Audited)
S ddeeeeeaes Rupees ----emeaann--
Size of the fund - Net assets 4,874,659 4,954,634
Cost of investments made 252,000 252,000
Percentage of the investments made 5% 5%
Fair value of the investments made 444,394 603,281
The breakup of the fair value of the investments is:
2019 2018

Rupees % Rupees %

Mutual Funds 444,394 100 603,281 100

The management, based on the un-audited financial statements of the Fund, is of the view that
the investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of
Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and Rules formulated for this purpose.

Note 2019 2018
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following items:

Cash and bank balances 7 16,410,061 15,600,826
Short term borrowings 22 (414,340,936) (387,568,906)
(397,930,875) (371,968,080)
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RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Liabilities
Description Certificates of Total
Long-term loan ;
investments
------------------ ---- Rupees--eeecmmeamcannnnan
Balance as at July 1, 2018 28,833,331 378,127,544 398,960,875
Receipt of long term loan 50,000,000 - 50,000,000

- (20,833,335)
51,160,515 51,160,515

- (36,975,384) | (36,975,384)
29,166,665 14,185,131 43,351,796
Balance as at June 30, 2019 49,999,996 392,312,675 442,312,671

Repayment of long-term loan (20,833,335)
Issued and rolled forward during the year -
Payments made during the year

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Introduction and overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk

- Market risk

Risk management framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company'’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies.

The Company'’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced
by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence
to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in
market conditions and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management
standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment
in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation
or commitment that it has entered into with the Company, resulting in a financial loss to the
Company. The risk is generally limited to principal amounts and accrued interest thereon, if any,
and arises principally from the Company's receivables from customers and balances with the
banks.

Management of credit risk
The Company's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk
management policies and the requirements of the NBFC Rules and Regulations. The Company

attempts to control credit risk by monitoring credit exposures, limiting transactions with specific
counter parties, and continually assessing the credit worthiness of counter parties.
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43.2.2 Exposure to credit risk

In summary, compared to the maximum amount included in the statement of financial position,
the maximum exposure to credit risk as at June 30, 2019 is as follows:

2019 2018
Sta_temerjt of Maximum Sta_temerjt of Maximum
Financial exposure Financial exposure
Position Position
-------------------- Rupees -----===-=-smeucnn--
Cash and bank balances 16,410,061 16,360,820 15,600,826 15,532,549
Investments 63,465,086 2,953,920 62,555,748 4,010,055
ljarah rental receivables 536,780 536,780 536,780 536,780
Advance to employees 57,490 57,490 225,663 225,663
Accrued markup /
return on investment 202,301 - 1,031,624 -
Net Investment in
finance lease 2,363,312,394 1,575,358,841 2,248,597,149 1,461,310,241
Diminishing musharaka
receivable 9,394,499 9,394,499 19,064,000 19,064,000
Other receivable - net 25,835,690 25,835,690 5,247,451 5,247,451
Long-term deposits 112,500 112,500 300,460 300,460

2,479,326,801 1,630,610,540 2,353,159,701 1,506,227,199

Differences in the balances as per statement of financial position and maximum exposures
in investments and investment in finance lease were due to the fact that investments of
Rs. 60.51 million (2018: Rs. 58.55 million) relates to investments in Government securities
and investment in finance lease includes Rs. 787.954 million (2018: Rs. 787.287 million)
relating to security deposit which are not considered to carry credit risk.

43.2.3 Credit ratings and Collaterals

Details of the credit ratings of balances with the banks as at 30 June were as follows:

Ratings 2019 2018
AAA 1.94% 0.42%
AA+ 86.67% 89.46%
AA 0.48% 0.61%
AA- 1.50% 0.80%
A+ 0.00% 8.58%
A 8.22% 0.00%
A- 1.19% 0.13%
100.00% 100.00%

43.2.4 Description of Collateral held

The Company's leases are secured against assets leased out and post dated cheques. In a few
leases additional collateral is also obtained.
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Aging analysis of net investment in finance lease

2019
Carrying Amount on Amount on Impairment
Amount which no which recognised
impairment impairment
recognised recognised
Past due = = eeeseescsscsccsccsscseseaeee.s Rupees =-=-=sseemeemecmcncancanenn-
Neither over due nor impaired 2,337,832,004 2,337,832,004 - -
1-89days* 22,832,397 22,832,397 - -
90 days - 1 year * 1,240,991 1,240,991 - -
1 year - 2 years 3,156,991 - 3,156,991 1,749,989
2 years - 3 years - - - -
More than 3 years 878,053 - 878,053 878,053
2,365,940,436 2,361,905,392 4,035,044 2,628,042
2018
Carrying Amount on Amount on Impairment
Amount which no which recognised
impairment impairment
recognised recognised
Past due = 0 @ ieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeees Rupees -------cemmcmmcmancaanans
Neither over due nor impaired 2,227,396,885 2,227,396,885 - -
1-89 days* 16,828,310 16,828,310 - -
90 days - 1 year * 3,929,142 3,929,142 - -
1 year - 2 years 885,632 - 885,632 442,820
2 years - 3 years - - - -
More than 3 years 878,049 - 878,049 878,049
2,249,918,018 2,248,154,337 1,763,681 1,320,869

Impairment is recognised by the Company in accordance with NBFC Regulations and
subjective evaluation of investment portfolio is carried out on an ongoing basis.

* No impairment loss has been recorded on these finance leases in accordance with the
requirements of the NBFC Regulations.

Concentration of credit risk - gross investment in finance lease

The Company seeks to manage its credit risk through diversification of financing activities
to avoid undue concentration of credit risk with individuals or groups of customers in
specific locations or business sectors.

The management of the Company follows two sets of guidelines. Internally, it has its own
operating policy duly approved by the Board of Directors whereas externally it adheres
to the regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan. The
operating policy defines the extent of exposures with reference to a particular sector or
group of leases.
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Details of the composition of gross investment in finance lease portfolio of the Company are
given below:

2019 2018
Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage
Energy, oil and gas 627,012,225 21.31 386,318,885 14.65
Steel, engineering and auto 199,950,856 6.79 125,668,092 4.77
Electrical goods 15,344,296 0.52 251,841,246 9.55
Transport and communication 125,956,923 4.28 97,704,542 3.70
Chemical, fertilizer and
pharmaceuticals 89,910,760 3.06 49,077,870 1.86
Textile 139,856,315 4.75 16,289,911 0.62
Food, tobacco and
beverage 220,211,279 7.48 88,627,131 3.36
Hotels 85,033,422 2.89 73,099,950 2.77
Construction 175,827,847 5.98 570,490,802 21.63
Health care 252,205,975 8.57 221,964,689 8.42
Advertisement 65,536,872 2.23 89,716,860 3.40
Services 103,678,795 3.52 239,825,501 9.09
Packaging 45,609 0.00 6,237,198 0.24
Education 38,069,891 1.29 153,322,710 5.81
Media & Entertainment 272,262,549 9.25 60,965,834 2.31
Others 531,820,002 18.08 206,066,793 7.81
2,942,723,615 100.00 2,637,218,014 100.00
Impaired assets

As at June 30, 2019, the Company holds provision against lease receivable held under
litigation and provision against insurance and other receivable amounting to Rs. 29.199
million and Rs. 1.431 million respectively.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial
obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company
could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.

Management of liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by following the internal guidelines of the management
such as monitoring maturities of financial liabilities, continuously monitoring its liquidity
position and ensuring availability of the funds by maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping
committed credit lines available, under both normal and stress conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation.
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43.3.2 Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s liabilities:

2019
Total Contractual Upto three threg%gr:rﬁg and orﬁ”e(’;‘éé?‘iﬂd Over five
cash flow months upto Upto years
one year five years
R B e hnnE LR R RN RUpEes ======mmmmmmmaaaaaaaaan,

Non derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payable 4,797,452 4,797,452 4,797,452

Unclaimed dividend 1.996,977 1,996,977 1,996,977

Accrued mark-up 22,857,201 22,857,201 22,857,201 - -

Certificates of investment 392,312,675 521,805,813 - 19,821,663 501,984,150

Short term borrowing 414,340,936 414,340,936 264,914,612 149,426,324 -

Long-term loan 49,999,996 58,917,291 9,927,896 16,091,548 32,897,847

886,305,237 1,024,715,670 304,494,138 185,339,535 534,881,997
2018
Total Contractual Upto three threzﬂ%g;rr?gand or’;AeO)r/Zz;'::rn]d Over five
cash flow months upto upto years
one year five years
o I LR EEEEEEEE Rupees -======-===cmmmmncmnnnn

Non derivative financial
liabilities

Trade and other payable 7,474,749 7,474,749 7,474,749

Unclaimed dividend 480,438 480,438 480,438

Accrued mark-up 16,035,582 16,035,582 16,035,582 - -

Certificates of investment 378,127,544 433,487,502 97,280,717 80,163,246 256,043,539

Short term borrowing 387,568,906 387,568,906 227,437,675 160,131,231 -

Long-term loan 20,833,331 22,127,224 4,582,032 8,952,338 8,592,854

810,520,550 867,174,401 353,291,193 249,246,815 264,636,393

43.3.3 The contractual cash flow relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on
the basis of mark-up rates effective at year end. The rates of mark-up have been disclosed
in notes 21 to 23 to these financial statements.

43.4 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rates, equity prices,
foreign exchange rates and credit spreads (not relating to changes in the obligor’s/issuer’s
credit standing) will affect the Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments.

43.4.1 Management of market risk

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return on risk. The Company manages the
market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by following internal risk management
policies and regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
The Company is exposed to interest rate and other price risk only.

43.4.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises
on investment in finance lease, investment in government securities, bank balances and borrowing
from banks. The Company carries a mix of fixed and floating rate financial instruments.

At June 30, details of the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments
were as follows: 85
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Carrying amount

2019 2018
Fixed rate instruments ~~ eeeeeeeeeeee- Rupees ------u------
Financial assets 64.545.356 61.213.314
Financial liabilities 392,312,675 378,127,544
Variable rate instruments
Financial assets 2.373.243.673 _2.268.197.929
Financial liabilities 464,340,932 408,402,237

43.4.2.1 Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not
affect profit and loss account.

43.4.2.2 Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points (bps) in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2019.

Profit and loss

100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease
------------ Rupees ----=--=---
As at June 30, 2019
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments 19,089,027 (19,089,027)
As at June 30, 2018
Cash flow sensitivity - variable rate instruments 18,597,957 (18,597,957)

The sensitivity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2019 is not necessarily indicative of the
impact on the Company's net assets of future movements in interest rates and profit for
the year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

86



Pak-Gulf Leasing
Company Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

43.4.2.3 Yield / interest rate sensitivity position for on statement of financial position financial instruments based
on the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date is as follows:

2019
. Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate risk
ﬁf;?ﬂbvpe, More than More than . ’;‘gtrﬁéfk?lsje?
interest/ Total Upto three three months and  one year and Over five interest/p
profit rate months upto _upto years profit rate
one year five years risk
) ) Percent  ==ssemmeeeeceeeeeeeeeeaenaa RUpEES ===-=mmmmmcmmccccccmeceme e
Financial assets (%)
Cash and bank balances 10.25 16,410,061 4,034,190 12,375,871
Short term investments 11.2 57,433,161 54,479,241 2,953,920
Other receivables - net - 25,526,690 - 25,526,690
ljarah rentals receivables 12.04 - 12.88 536,780 536,780 -
Advance to employees - 57,490 - 57,490
Accrued mark-up / return on
investments 202,301 202,301
Net investment in finance lease
(net of security deposit) 9.31-31.46 | 1,575,358,841 149,297,939 465,683,433 960,377,469
Diminishing musharaka receivable 12.45 9,394,499 1,191,501 4,766,004 3,436,994
Long-term investments 9.25-115 6,031,925 6,031,925 - - -
Long-term deposits - 112,500 - - - 112,500
1,691,064,248 215,571,576 470,449,437 963,814,463 41,228,772
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 4,797,452 4,797,452
Unclaimed dividend 1,996,977 1,996,977
Accrued mark-up - 22,857,201 - - 22,857,201
Certificates of investment 10.75-12.25 | 392,312,675 - 18,375,094 373,937,581 -
Short term borrowings 1447 -15.47 414,340,936 264,914,612 149,426,324 -
Long-term loan 12.61-13.12 49,999,996 8,333,330 12,500,001 29,166,665 -
886,305,237 273,247,942 180,301,419 403,104,246 29,651,630
On statement of financial postion gap 804,759,011 (57,676,366) 290,148,018 560,710,217 11,577,142
2018
. Exposed to mark-up / interest / profit rate risk
ﬁf;?ﬂbvpe, More than More than . ’;‘gtrﬁéfk?lsje?
interest/ Total Upto three three months and  one year and Over five interest/p
profit rate months upto _upto years profit rate
one year five years risk
) ) Percent  ==sssmmeeemceeeeeeeeeeaeeaa RUpEES =====smmmmcmmccccccccemmeees
Financial assets (%)
Cash and bank balances 5-6.7 15,600,826 2,667,621 12,933,205
Short term investments 6.18-6.24 40,386,562 36,376,507 4,010,055
Other receivables - net - 4,938,451 - 4,938,451
ljarah rentals receivables 12.04 - 12.88 536,780 536,780 -
Advance to employees - 225,663 - 225,663
Accrued mark-up / return on
investments 1,031,624 1,031,624
Net investment in finance lease
(net of security deposit) 9.93-31.46 |1,461,310,241 136,840,037 416,582,387 876,603,608 31,284,209
Diminishing musharaka receivable 12.45 19,064,000 1,099,834 3,574,503 14,389,663 -
Long-term investments 9.25-115 22,169,186 16,045,277 - 6,123,909 -
Long-term deposits - 300,460 - - - - 300,460
1,565,563,793 193,566,056 420,156,890 897,117,180 31,284,209 23,439,458
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 7,474,749 7,474,749
Unclaimed dividend 480,438 480,438
Accrued mark-up - 16,035,582 - - - 16,035,582
Certificates of investment 75-85 378,127,544 96,564,037 77,029,599 204,533,908 -
Short term borrowings 8.43-9.43 387,568,906 227,437,675 160,131,231 -
Long-term loan 791 20,833,331 4,166,667 12,500,001 4,166,663 -
810,520,550 328,168,379 249,660,831 208,700,571 - 23,990,769
On statement of financial postion gap 755,043,243 (134,602,323) 170,496,059 688,416,609 31,284,209 551,311

The effective mark-up / interest / profit rate for each of the monetary financial instrument is as indicated above.
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43.4.3 Financial instruments by category

2019
Financial assets
Particulars Amco(;tsitsed thfirtofl?lgrhvgtlﬁgr Total
com_prehenlsive
Income
Financial assets ~ mmmemmmmeee Rupees ----=------
Cash and bank balances 16,410,061 - 16,410,061
Short term investments 54,479,241 2,953,920 57,433,161
Other receivables - net 25,526,690 - 25,526,690
ljarah rental receivables 536,780 - 536,780
Accrued markup /
return on investments 202,301 - 202,301
Net investment in finance lease
(net of security deposit) 1,575,358,841 - 1,575,358,841
Diminishing musharaka receivable 9,394,499 - 9,394,499
Long-term investments 6,031,925 - 6,031,925
Long-term deposits 112,500 - 112,500
1,688,052,838 2,953,920 1,691,006,758
2019
. Financial
Particulars ‘alzlfaat;:“\yeﬁﬁe_ Amg(;glsed Total
through profit
or loss’
Financial Liabilites — eeeeeeaaaa. Rupees ====---=---
Trade and other payables - 4,797,452 4,797,452
Unclaimed dividend . 1,996,977 1,996,977
Accrued mark-up - 22,857,201 22,857,201
Certificates of investment . 392,312,675 392,312,675
Short term borrowings - 414,340,936 414,340,936
Long-term loan - 49,999,996 49,999,996
- 886,305,237 886,305,237
2018
X Financial assets
Particulars Amortised classified Total
cost as available
for sale
Financial assets ~ mmee=ssseee Rupees =-=-=-----
Cash and bank balances 15,600,826 - 15,600,826
Short term investments 36,376,507 4,010,055 40,386,562
Other receivables - net 4,938,451 - 4,938,451
ljarah rental receivables 536,780 - 536,780
Accrued markup /
return on investments 1,031,624 - 1,031,624
Net investment in finance lease
(net of security deposit) 1,461,310,241 - 1,461,310,241
Diminishing musharaka receivable 19,064,000 - 19,064,000
Long-term investments 22,169,186 - 22,169,186
Long-term deposits 300,460 - 300,460
1,561,328,075 4,010,055 1,565,338,130
2018
. Financial
Particulars ‘alzlga?yl\fflﬁe Am&;gfed Total
through profit
or loss’
Financial Liabilites —~— eeeeeeaaaa. Rupees ====---=---
Trade and other payables - 7,474,749 7,474,749
Unclaimed dividend R 480,438 480,438
Accrued mark-up - 16,035,582 16,035,582
Certificates of investment R 378,127,544 378,127,544
Short term borrowings - 387,568,906 387,568,906
Long-term loan - 20,833,331 20,833,331

810,520,550 810,520,550
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Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest risk or currency risk)
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its
issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market. Presently, the
Company is not exposed to equity securities price risk as the Company does not hold any equity
securities as at June 30, 2019. However, the Company holds National Investment Trust units,
exposing the Company to cash flow market risk. In case of one percent increase / decrease in
the net assets value of such units as on June 30, 2019, with all other variables held constant,
the net assets of the Company and total comprehensive income for the year would have been
higher / lower by Rs. 29,539 (2018: Rs. 40,101).

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide adequate returns for shareholders and benefits for other

stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce its cost of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital employed:

2019 2018
------------- Rupees ----=--=---
Total debt 856,653,607 786,529,781
Total equity 758,645,568 727,035,813
Total capital employed 1,615,299,175 1,513,565,594
Gearing ratio 53.03% 51.97%

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of its working
capital with a view to maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to
minimise liquidity risk. Taken as a whole, the Company's risk arising from financial instruments
is limited as there is no significant exposure to price and cash flow risk in respect of such
instruments.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company has two primary reporting segments namely, "Finance lease" and "Islamic finance",
based on the mode of finance, related risks and returns associated with the segments and
reporting of income and expenditure in accordance with the applicable accounting standards as
disclosed in Note 3.1. Other operations, which are not deemed by management to be sufficiently
significant to disclose as separate items and do not fall into the above segment categories, are
reported under “Others”.
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2019
Finance Islamic Others Total
lease finance

------------------------------- Rupees -------cemmcmmmcmanncannnann
Segment revenue 197,220,458 21,642,113 25,029,476 243,892,047
Administrative and operating expenses 41,988,676 28,457,224 4,550,415 74,996,315
Segment result 155,231,782 (6,815,111) 20,479,061 168,895,732
Provision for Workers’ Welfare Fund (1,452,000)
Unallocated expenses (18,005,232)
Result from operating activities 149,438,500
Finance cost (78,253,145)
Provision for taxation (6,807,215)
Profit for the year 64,378,140
Other Information -
Segment assets 2,386,986,201 23,839,676 235,049,578 2,645,875,455
Unallocated assets 15,916,682
Total assets 2,661,792,137
Segment liabilities 813,739,471 3,804,259 7,066,295 824,610,025
Unallocated liabilities 1,078,536,544
Total liabilities 1,903,146,569
Capital expenditure - - - -
Depreciation - 17,859,073 - 17,859,073
Unallocated Capital expenditure 340,672
Unallocated Depreciation 1,973,924

2018
Finance Islamic Others Total
lease finance

------------------------------- Rupees --==-=-csmmmmmmmmmeneena
Segment revenue 152,193,255 26,024,386 22,162,554 200,380,195
Administrative and operating expenses 26,758,385 20,746,721 4,461,332 51,966,438
Segment result 125,434,870 5,277,665 17,701,222 148,413,757
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund (1,645,118)
Unallocated expenses (18,348,725)
Result from operating activities 128,419,914
Finance cost (47,817,535)
Provision for taxation (11,233,987)
Profit for the year 69,368,392
Other Information -
Segment assets 2,252,081,402 51,597,549 214,700,243 2,518,379,194
Unallocated assets 30,438,201
Total assets 2,548,817,395
Segment liabilities 804,345,704 9,250,032 7,439,098 821,034,834
Unallocated liabilities 1,000,746,748
Total liabilities 1,821,781,582
Capital expenditure - - - -
Depreciation - 18,931,588 - 18,931,588
Unallocated Capital expenditure 5,554,659
Unallocated Depreciation 2,461,719
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The carrying values
of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values except for investments
carried at amortised cost and leases at fixed rate of return. The fair value of leases at fixed rate
of return cannot be reasonably estimated due to absence of market for such leases. The fair
value of investments carried at amortised cost is disclosed in note 8 and note 13.

The Company's accounting policy on fair value measurements is discussed in note 5.

The Company measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly
(i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

As at June 30, 2019, short term investments - fair value through other comprehensive income
amounting to Rs. 2.95 million (2018: Rs. 4.01 million), mentioned in note 8, were categorised
in level 1. Revaluation rates announced by Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan (MUFAP) are
used to determine fair value of investment in mutual funds categorised as 'fair value through
other comprehensive income'.

Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting
year during which the changes have occurred. However, there were no transfers between levels
of fair value hierarchy during the year.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION DATE

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on September 26, 2019 proposed a final dividend of
Rs. 0.75 per share (2018: Rs. 1.25 per share) for the year ended June 30, 2019, amounting to
Rs. 19.027 million (2018: Rs. 31.715 million) for approval of members at the Annual General
Meeting to be held on October 23, 2019. These financial statements do not reflect the impact
of this proposed dividend.

Under section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 (the Ordinance), every public company is
obliged to pay tax at the rate 5% on its accounting profit before tax if it derives profit for a tax
year but does not distribute at least 20% of its after tax profits within six months of the end of
the tax year through cash.

Based on the above fact, the Board of Directors of the Company has proposed final cash dividend

amounting to Rs. 19.027 million for the financial and Tax Year 2019 which exceeds the
prescribed minimum dividend requirement as referred above. Accordingly no further tax provision
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has been recorded under section 5A of the Ordinance.

48 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the
purpose of comparison and for better presentation. However, no significant reclassification has
been made during the year.

49 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 26, 2019 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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No. of Having Shares Shares Percentage
Share Holders From To Held %
57 1 100 757 0.0030
26 101 500 11878 0.0468
22 501 1000 16428 0.0648
31 1001 5000 64438 0.2540
3 5001 10000 23788 0.0938
3 10001 15000 41186 0.1623
3 15001 20000 53475 0.2108
2 20001 25000 49690 0.1959
2 25001 30000 50736 0.2000
1 30001 35000 32000 0.1261
1 45001 50000 49950 0.1969
4 55001 60000 229241 0.9036
1 90001 95000 94080 0.3708
1 100001 105000 100831 0.3974
1 115001 120000 116787 0.4603
1 120001 125000 122127 0.4814
1 125001 130000 128560 0.5067
2 195001 200000 399800 1.5759
3 340001 345000 1030563 4.0622
1 495001 500000 500000 1.9708
2 685001 690000 1376084 5.4241
1 795001 800000 799899 3.2530
1 810001 815000 813885 3.2081
1 1145001 1150000 1148770 45281
1 1285001 1290000 1286994 5.0729
1 1495001 1500000 1499785 5.9117
1 1685001 1690000 1689434 6.6592
1 2450001 2455000 2451090 9.6614
2 3615001 3620000 7234150 28.5148
1 3950001 3955000 3953394 15.5831
178 Company Total 25369800 100.000
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CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS
AS AT JUNE 30, 2019

Category of

Share

Total Share

Number . Percentage

shareholder Held holding 9
Associated
companies, undertaking and
related parties
Unibro Industries Ltd 1,499,785
Mid East Agencies (Pvt) Ltd 1,286,994
Total 2 2,786,779 10.98
NIT and ICP - - - R
Director, chief executive & their
spouse and minor children
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi 2,451,090
Mr. Pervez Inam 3,953,394
Mr. Fawad S. Malik 1,348,670
Mrs. Attega Fawad 75,005
Mr. Ismail H. Ahmed 500
Brig. Naveed Nasar Khan (Retd.) 500
Mr. Naeem Ali Muhammad Munshi 500
Mr. Jan Ali Khan Junejo 500
Ms. Sitwat Farrukh 500
Total 9 7,830,659 30.87
Executives - - - -
Public Sector Companies 1 1 1 0.00
Banks, DFIs, NBFCs, Insurance
Companies, Modaraba and Mutual
Funds
Bank of Punjab 1 799,899 799,899 3.15
Foreign Companies
Individuals 159 13,925,490 13,925,490 54.89
Others 5 2,127 2,127 0.01
Total 178 25,369,800 | 25,369,800 100
Holding 5% or more
Mr. Pervez Inam 3,953,394 15.58%
Mr. Muhammad Ali Pervez 3,617,075 14.26%
Mr. Hassan Sohail 3,617,075 14.26%
Mr. Sohail Inam Ellahi 2,451,090 9.66%
Mr. Javed Inam Ellahie 1,689,434 6.66%
Unibro Industries Ltd 1,499,785 5.91%
Mid East Agencies (Pvt.) Ltd 1,286,994 5.07%
Mr. Fawad S. Malik 1,348,670 5.32%

19,463,517 76.71%

Total
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fsi=:= Dak-Gulf Leasing Proxy Form
;=2 Company Limited

1/We of

being member(s) of

PAK-GULF LEASING COMPANY LIMITED holding ordinary shares as per Registered

Folio No./CDC Alc No. (for members who have shares in CDS)

hereby appoint of

or failing him/her

of

as my/our Proxy to attend and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 26" Annual General Meeting

to be held on Wednesday, October 23, 2019 at 4:00 p.m. and at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand this day of 20109.
Signed by in presence of
Please affix
Rs. 5/- Revenue
Stamp
Signature and address of witness Signature of Member(s)
Share Folio No. Share Folio No.

A member entitled to attend, speak and vote at a General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to
attend, speak and voter for him/her. A proxy must be a member of the Company.

The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer of this attorney
duly authorised in writing if the appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of an
officer or attorney duly authorised.

The instrument appointing a proxy together with the Power of Attorney if any under which it is signed
or a notarially certified copy thereof, should be deposited at the Company’s Registered Office not later
than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.
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